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EXPLANATORY NOTE

On September 28, 2018, we consummated a reverse acquisition transaction to acquire a privately-held company, Ondas Networks
Inc., and changed our name from “Zev Ventures Incorporated” to “Ondas Holdings Inc.” As a result, Ondas Networks Inc. (“Ondas
Networks”) became our wholly owned subsidiary and we refer to this transaction as the “Acquisition.” In connection with the closing of
the Acquisition, we discontinued the prior business of Zev Ventures as a reseller of sporting and concert tickets and our sole business
became that of Ondas Networks. This Current Report on Form 10-Q reports our business and financial results on a consolidated basis and
therefore, the use of the words “we,” “our,” the “Company” and “Ondas Holdings” means Ondas Holdings Inc. and our wholly owned
subsidiary, Ondas Networks. Where necessary for clarification purposes, Ondas Holdings, Ondas Networks or Zev Ventures may be used
independently.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, which we refer to as the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which we refer to
as the Exchange Act, that relate to future events or to our future operations or financial performance. Any forward-looking statement
involves known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or
achievements to differ materially from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statement. Forward-looking statements include statements, other than statements of historical fact, about, among other
things:

our plans to develop our FullMAX™ system of wireless base stations;

our plans to develop remote radios;

the adoption by our target industries of the new IEEE 802.16s standard for private cellular networks;

our future development priorities;

our estimates regarding the size of our potential target markets;

our expectations about the impact of new accounting standards;

our future operations, financial position, revenues, costs, expenses, uses of cash, capital requirements, our need for additional
financing or the period for which our existing cash resources will be sufficient to meet our operating requirements; or

e our strategies, prospects, plans, expectations, forecasts or objectives.

Words such as, but not limited to, “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,”
“predict,” “project,” “targets,” “likely,” “will,” “would,” “could,” “should,” “continue,” “scheduled” and similar expressions or phrases, or
the negative of those expressions or phrases, are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking
statements contain these identifying words. Although we believe that we have a reasonable basis for each forward-looking statement
contained in this report, we caution you that these statements are based on our estimates or projections of the future that are subject to
known and unknown risks and uncertainties and other important factors that may cause our actual results, level of activity, performance,
experience or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by any forward-looking statement. Actual results, level of
activity, performance, experience or achievements may differ materially from those expressed or implied by any forward-looking statement
as a result of various important factors, including our critical accounting policies and risks and uncertainties relating, among other things,
to:

2 .

our ability to obtain additional financing on reasonable terms, or at all;

our ability to repay our indebtedness;

the accuracy of our estimates regarding expenses, costs, future revenues, uses of cash and capital requirements;

the market acceptance of our wireless connection products and the IEEE 802.16s standard;

our ability to develop future generations of our current products;

our ability to generate significant revenues and achieve profitability;

our ability to successfully commercialize our current and future products, including their rate and degree of market acceptance;
our ability to attract and retain key scientific or management personnel and to expand our management team;

our ability to establish licensing, collaboration or similar arrangements on favorable terms and our ability to attract collaborators
with development, regulatory and commercialization expertise;

e our ability to manage the growth of our business;




expenditures not resulting in commercially successful products;

our outreach to global markets, particularly China;

our commercialization, marketing and manufacturing capabilities and strategy;

our ability to expand, protect and maintain our intellectual property position;

the success of competing third-party products;

our ability to fully remediate our identified internal control material weaknesses;

regulatory developments in the United States and other countries;

our ability to comply with regulatory requirements relating to our business, and the costs of compliance with those requirements,
including those on data privacy and security.

These and other risks and uncertainties are described in greater detail under the caption “Risk Factors” in our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on October 4, 2018, as amended by Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A filed on October 22, 2018, in Item 1A of Part II of
this quarterly report, and in other filings that we make with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). As a result of the risks and
uncertainties, the results or events indicated by the forward-looking statements may not occur. We caution you not to place undue reliance
on any forward-looking statement.

In addition, any forward-looking statement in this quarterly report represents our views only as of the filing date of this quarterly
report and should not be relied upon as representing our views as of any subsequent date. We anticipate that subsequent events and
developments may cause our views to change. Although we may elect to update these forward-looking statements publicly at some point in
the future, we specifically disclaim any obligation to do so, except as required by applicable law. Our forward-looking statements do not
reflect the potential impact of any future acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures or investments we may make.
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ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory
Other current assets
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets
Lease deposits

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Secured promissory note, net of debt discount $46,356
Notes payable
Derivative liability
Advance from related party
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Notes payable, net of debt discount of $0 and $162,659, respectively
Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ Deficit:
Preferred stock - par value $0.0001: 10,000,000 shares authorized
Common stock - par value $0.0001; 350,000,000 shares authorized;
50,463,732 and 16,797,744 issued and outstanding
Additional paid in capital
Subscriptions receivable

Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ deficit

Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit

September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
(Unaudited)

$ 516,251 $ 460,063
37,840 31,855

315,115 177,389
133,704 23,591
1,002,910 692,898
132,283 12,856

35,870 —

35,000 20,000

$ 1,206,063 $ 725,754
$ 843,610 $ 798,255
5,046,356 —
3,882,868 3,865,558

— 166,093

— 232,778

1,028,943 885,022
10,801,777 5,947,706
300,000 2,777,341
11,101,777 8,725,047
5,046 1,679
14,334,570 12,383,506
(1,958) —
(24,233,372) (20,384,478)
(9,895,714) (7,999,293)

$ 1,206,063 $ 725,754

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.




Revenues, net

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Operating expenses:
General and administration
Sales and marketing
Research and development
Total operating expense

Operating loss
Other income (expense)
Interest expense
Change in fair value of derivative liability
Gain on conversion of debt
Interest income
Total other income (expense)
Loss before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net loss

Net loss per share - basic and diluted

ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding,

basic and diluted

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended September Nine Months Ended September
30, 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017

$ 35,176  § 40,134 83,180 § 209,348
6,427 16,162 14,985 63,092

28,749 23,972 68,195 146,256
612,343 557,604 1,159,997 1,052,239
601,826 115,807 1,142,986 351,165
887,039 214,056 1,718,869 656,121
2,101,208 887,467 4,021,852 2,059,525
(2,072,459) (863,495) (3,953,657) (1,913,269)
(2,381,602) (198,670) (2,932,674) (514,033)
22,931 25,732 (952,971) 20,135
3,976,992 — 3,976,992 —
6,606 — 13,416 —
1,624,927 (172,938) 104,763 (493,898)
(447,532) (1,036,433) (3,848,894) (2,407,167)
$ (447,532)  $  (1,036,433) (3,848,894) § (2,407,167)
$ 0.02) $ (0.06) 0.18) $ (0.15)
24,033,664 16,120,860 21,135,818 16,120,860

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.




ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 30, 2017 AND
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

(Unaudited)
Additional
Common Stock Paid in Subscriptions  Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Receivable Deficit Total

Balance, December 31, 2017 16,797,744 1,679 12,383,506 — (20,384,478) (7,999,293)
Issuance of shares in private placement 6,648,586 665 4,031 (1,958) — 2,738
Issuance of shares in conversion of

debt 2,017,402 202 120,369 — — 120,571
Recovery of derivative liability — — 1,742,939 — — 1,742,939
Effect of merger and recapitalization

pursuant to execution of Agreement

and Plan of Merger and

Reorganization 25,000,000 2,500 83,725 — — 86,225
Net loss — — — — (3,848,894) (3,848,894)
Balance, September 30, 2018 50,463,732 $ 5,046 $14,334570  $ (1,958)  $(24,233.372)  $(9,895,714)

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.




ONDAS NETWORKS INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended September 30,
2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net loss $§ (3,848,894) § (2,407,167)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows used in operating activities:
Depreciation 15,405 11,530
Allowance for doubtful accounts (7,914) —
Amortization of debt discount and deferred financing costs 907,891 455,539
Amortization of intangible assets 77 —
Change in fair value of derivative liability 952,971 (20,135)
Stock-based compensation — 1,166
Gain on conversion of debt (3,976,992) —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: —
Accounts receivable 1,929 (64,618)
Inventory (137,725) (93,126)
Other current assets (110,113) (708,292)
Accounts payable 45,355 116,234
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 1,515,384 402,829
Net cash flows used in operating activities (4,642,626) (2,306,040)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment (134,833) —
Patent costs (35,947) —
Deposits (15,000) —
Net cash flows used in investing activities (185,780) _
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from secured promissory note, net of costs 4,925,000 —
Proceeds from convertible notes payable 100,000 2,090,000
Proceeds from loans payable — 65,700
Proceeds from sale of common stock 2,738 22,000
Advances from related parties 12,500 178,813
Repayment of advances from related party (155,645) —
Repayment of short term loan — (37,500)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities 4,884,593 2,319,013
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 56,187 12,973
Cash and cash equivalent, beginning of period 460,064 47,630
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 516251  § 60,603
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest $ 562,798  $ 3,692
Cash paid for income taxes $ — 3 —
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Subscriptions receivable $ (1,958) $ —
Derivative liability $ 623,875 $ 146,351
Interest converted to debt $ 17,310 $ 880,558

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.




ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Company

On September 28, 2018, Zev Ventures Incorporated consummated a transaction to acquire a privately-held company, Ondas
Networks Inc., and changed its name from “Zev Ventures Incorporated” to “Ondas Holdings Inc.” (“Ondas Holdings”, the “Company”,
“we”, “our”, and “us”) Ondas Networks Inc. (“Ondas Networks”) became our wholly owned subsidiary and we refer to this transaction as
the “Acquisition.” In connection with the closing of the Acquisition, we discontinued the prior business of Zev Ventures Incorporated as a

reseller of sporting and concert tickets, and our sole business became that of Ondas Networks.

Our corporate headquarters and sales and research and development facility are located in Sunnyvale, CA. We design,

manufacture, sell and support FulMAX™, our multi-patented wireless radio systems for secure, wide area mission-critical business-to-
business networks. The radio system network provides point-to-multipoint, non-line of sight connectivity at communication speeds
comparable to broadband applications. We utilize licensed VHF and UHF spectrum in its networks. Since inception on February 16, 2006,
Ondas Networks has devoted efforts principally to research and development and raising capital. In 2018, we began investing in sales and
marketing in order to build our customer base. Following the Acquisition on September 28, 2018, our business became that of Ondas
Networks.

Our future capital requirements will depend upon many factors, including progress with developing, manufacturing and marketing
our technologies, the time and costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims and other
proprietary rights, our ability to establish collaborative arrangements, marketing activities and competing technological and market
developments, including regulatory changes and overall economic conditions in our target markets.

Our business consists of a single segment of products and services all of which are sold and provided in the United States and
certain international markets.

The Acquisition

On September 28, 2018, we entered into the Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization (the “Merger Agreement”) with
Zev Merger Sub, Inc. and Ondas Networks to acquire Ondas Networks. The transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement were
consummated on September 28, 2018 (the “Closing”), and pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, all outstanding shares of
common stock of Ondas Networks, $0.00001 par value per share, (the “Ondas Networks Share(s)”), were exchanged for shares of our
common stock, $0.0001 par value per share (the “Company Shares”). Accordingly, Ondas Networks became our wholly-owned subsidiary
and its business became the business of the Company.

At the Closing, each Ondas Networks Share outstanding immediately prior to the Closing was converted into 3.823 Company
Shares (the “Exchange Ratio”), with all fractional shares rounded down to the nearest whole share. Accordingly, we issued an aggregate of
25,463,732 Company Shares for all of the then-outstanding Ondas Networks Shares.

In connection with the Closing, we amended and restated our articles of incorporation, effective September 28, 2018 to (i) change
our name to Ondas Holdings Inc. and (ii) increase our authorized capital to 360,000,000 shares, consisting of 350,000,000 shares of
common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, and 10,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share. In
connection with the Acquisition, our trading symbol changed to “ONDS” effective at the opening of business on October 5, 2018.




ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Also in connection with the Closing, (i) our sole director appointed additional individuals, who previously were members of the
board of directors of Ondas Networks and its chief executive officer, to serve on our board of directors, and our board of directors
subsequently appointed executive officers; (ii) the former holders of the Ondas Networks Shares executed lock-up agreements (the “Lock-
Up Agreements”), which provide for an initial 12-month lock-up period followed by a subsequent 12-month limited sale period,
commencing with the date of the Closing; (iii) we entered into a Common Stock Repurchase Agreement with Energy Capital, LLC, a
current stockholder of the Company (“Energy Capital”), pursuant to which the entity sold an aggregate of 32.6 million Company Shares
(the “Repurchase Shares”) to us at $0.0001 per share, for an aggregate consideration of $3,260. The Repurchase Shares were canceled and
returned to our authorized but unissued shares; (iv) our board of directors approved, and our stockholders adopted, the 2018 Incentive Stock
Plan (the “2018 Plan”) pursuant to which 10 million Company Shares has been reserved for issuance to employees, including officers,
directors and consultants; and (v) we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with Energy Capital, pursuant to which Energy Capital
agreed to lend us an aggregate principal amount of up to $10 million, subject to specified conditions.

In accordance with ASC 805-40, Reverse Acquisitions, the historical capital stock account of Ondas Networks immediately prior
to the Closing was carried forward and retroactively adjusted to reflect the par value of the outstanding stock of the Company, including the
number of shares issued in the Closing as we are the surviving legal entity. Additionally, retained earnings of Ondas Networks have been
carried forward after the Closing. All share and per share amounts in the condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes
have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the one for 3.823 exchange of shares of common stock in connection with the Acquisition.

Liquidity

We have incurred losses since inception and have funded our operations primarily through debt and the sale of capital stock. As of
September 30, 2018, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $24,000,000 and net borrowings outstanding of approximately
$9,200,000, of which approximately $3,900,000, is contractually due on December 31, 2018 and $5,000,000 is contractually due on
September 19, 2019. As of September 30, 2018, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $500,000 and a working capital deficit
of approximately $9,800,000.

Our ability to generate revenue and achieve profitability depends on our completion of our second-generation products and
commencing the manufacture, marketing and sales of those products. These activities, including our planned research and development
efforts, will require significant uses of working capital through the end of 2018 and beyond. Based on our current operating plans, we
believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, as well as the $5 million in borrowings we drew down in October 2018 (see NOTES 7
and 12 for further details) will be sufficient to meet our anticipated operating needs through December 31, 2018. We currently do not have
sufficient funds to repay certain debt obligations totaling approximately $4 million at maturity on December 31, 2018 and must secure
additional equity or debt capital in order to repay those obligations. At the present time we have no commitments for any such funding and
no assurance can be provided that we will be able to raise the needed funds on commercially acceptable terms or at all. These factors raise
substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern through November 13, 2019. The financial information contained in these
financial statements have been prepared on a basis that assumes that we will continue as a going concern, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. This financial information and
these financial statements do not include any adjustments that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.




ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Presentation

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments,
consisting of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of our financial statements for interim periods in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”). The information included in this quarterly report on
Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the accompanying notes included in our Report on Form 8-K/A
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 22, 2018 (“Form 8-K/A”). Our accounting policies are described in
the “Notes to Financial Statements” in our Form 8-K/A and are updated, as necessary, in this Form 10-Q. The December 31, 2017
condensed consolidated balance sheet data presented for comparative purposes was derived from our audited financial statements but does
not include all disclosures required by U.S. GAAP. The results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2108, are
not necessarily indicative of the operating results for the full year or for any other subsequent interim period.

NOTE 2 —- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and our wholly owned
subsidiary, Ondas Networks Inc. All intercompany transaction and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Segment Information

We operate in one business segment, which is the development, marketing and sale of wireless radio systems for secure, wide area
mission-critical business-to-business networks.

Use of Estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Such management estimates include those relating to revenue recognition, inventory write-downs to reflect net realizable value,
assumptions used in the valuation of stock-based awards and warrants, and valuation allowances against deferred tax assets. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of three months or less, as well as deposits in financial
institutions, to be cash and cash equivalents. As of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we had no cash equivalents.

Trade Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at a gross invoice amount less an allowance for doubtful accounts. We estimate allowance for
doubtful accounts by evaluating specific accounts where information indicates our customers may have an inability to meet financial
obligations, such as customer payment history, credit worthiness and receivable amounts outstanding for an extended period beyond
contractual terms. We use assumptions and judgment, based on the best available facts and circumstances, to record an allowance to reduce
the receivable to the amount expected to be collected. These allowances are evaluated and adjusted as additional information is received.




ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We had no allowance for doubtful accounts as of September 30, 2018 and an allowance for doubtful accounts of $7,914 as of
December 31, 2017.

Inventory

Inventories, which consist solely of equipment components, are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or net realizable
value, net of reserves for obsolete inventory. We continually analyze our slow-moving and excess inventories. Based on historical and
projected sales volumes and anticipated selling prices, we established reserves. Inventory that is in excess of current and projected use is
reduced by an allowance to a level that approximates its estimate of future demand. Products that are determined to be obsolete are written
down to net realizable value. As of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we determined that no such reserves were necessary.

Property and Equipment

All additions, including improvements to existing facilities, are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense
as incurred. Depreciation of property and equipment is principally recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The estimated useful lives typically are (i) three years for equipment and software, and (ii) seven years for furniture and fixtures.
Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset.
Upon the disposal of property, the asset and related accumulated depreciation accounts are relieved of the amounts recorded therein for
such items, and any resulting gain or loss is recorded in operating expenses in the year of disposition.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are evaluated whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable or the useful life has changed. Such indicators include significant technological changes, adverse changes in market conditions
and/or poor operating results. The carrying value of a long-lived asset group is considered impaired when the projected undiscounted future
cash flows is less than its carrying value. The amount of impairment loss recognized is the difference between the estimated fair value and
the carrying value of the asset or asset group. Fair market value is determined primarily using the projected future cash flows discounted at
a rate commensurate with the risk involved. Based upon our evaluation, there were no impairments of long-lived assets required during the
nine months ended September 30, 2018.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses are charged to operations as incurred. For internally developed patents, all patent application
costs are expensed as incurred as research and development expense. Patent application costs, generally legal costs, are expensed as
research and development costs until such time as the future economic benefits of such patents become more certain.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value and changes in fair value are recorded in earnings at each reporting date
in accordance with U.S. GAAP.




ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist primarily of receivables, accounts payable, accrued expenses and short and long-term debt. The
carrying amount of receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates our fair value because of the short-term maturity of
such instruments. We have elected not to carry our debt instruments at fair value. The carrying amount of our debt approximates fair value.
Interest rates that are currently available to us for issuance of short and long-term debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used
to estimate the fair value of our short and long-term debt.

We have categorized our assets and liabilities that are valued at fair value on a recurring basis into a three-level fair value
hierarchy in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer
a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities (Level 1) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Assets and liabilities recorded in the balance sheets at fair value are categorized based on a hierarchy of inputs, as follows:

Level 1 -- Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 -- Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 -- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

In accordance with accounting standards, we determined that certain instruments qualified as derivative liabilities and should be
recorded at their fair value on the date of issuance and re-measured at fair value each reporting period with the change reported in
earnings). The fair value of these instruments were computed using the Binomial Lattice Monte Carlo model, incorporating transaction
details such as the price of our common stock, contractual terms, maturity and risk-free rates, as well as assumptions about future
financings, volatility, and holder behavior.

The assumptions used in computing the fair value as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are as follows:

September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
Stock price $ 0.2281 $ 0.0027
Conversion price $ 8.1500 $ 8.1500
Expected volatility 63.0% 60.0%
Term (years) 9.5 8.5
Risk-free interest 2.36% 3.03%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0%
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The following table provides the financial assets and liabilities reported at fair value and measured on a recurring basis at
September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

Assets/ Quoted Prices in Significant Other
(Liabilities) Active Markets for  Significant Other Unobservable
Measured at Fair Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
Description Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Fair value of warrant liability as of:
September 30, 2018 $ — — 3 — 3 —
December 31, 2017 $ (166,093) $ — 3 — $ (166,093)

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value associated with the Level 3 liabilities for the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 and the year ended December 31, 2017:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Significant Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)
September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
Balance, beginning of period $ (166,093) $ —
Issuances of derivative liability (623,875) (171,118)
Reclassification to additional paid in capital 1,742,939 —
Change in fair value of derivative liability (952,971) 5,025
Balance, end of period $ S (166,093)

The above table of Level 3 liabilities begins with the prior period balance and adjusts the balance for changes that occurred during
the current period. The ending balance of the Level 3 financial instrument presented above represent our best estimates and may not be
substantiated by comparisons to independent markets and, in many cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instruments.

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenue primarily from the sale of the FullMAX System and our warranty/maintenance program. In accordance with
ASC 606, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services. The amount of revenue recognized
reflects the consideration to which we expect to be entitled to receive in exchange for these goods or services. The provisions of ASC 606
include a five-step process by which we determine revenue recognition, depicting the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts
reflecting the payment to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASC 606 requires us to apply the
following steps: (1) identify the contract with the customer; (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the
transaction price; (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when, or as, we
satisfy the performance obligation.
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Revenue is measured as the amount of consideration we expect to receive in exchange for transferring products or services to a
customer. To the extent the transaction price includes variable consideration, we estimate the amount of variable consideration that should
be included in the transaction price utilizing the expected value method to which it expects to be entitled. Variable consideration is included
in the transaction price if, in our judgment, it is probable that a significant future reversal of cumulative revenue under the contract will not
occur. Estimates of variable consideration and determination of whether to include estimated amounts in the transaction price are based
largely on an assessment of our anticipated performance and all information (historical, current and forecasted) that is reasonably available.
Sales, value add, and other taxes collected on behalf of third parties are excluded from revenue. For the nine months ended September 30,
2018 and the year ended December 31, 2108, none of our contracts with customers included variable consideration.

Contracts that are modified to account for changes in contract specifications and requirements are assessed to determine if the
modification either creates new or changes the existing enforceable rights and obligations. Generally, contract modifications are for
products or services that are not distinct from the existing contract due to the inability to use, consume or sell the products or services on
their own to generate economic benefits and are accounted for as if they were part of that existing contract. The effect of a contract
modification on the transaction price and measure of progress for the performance obligation to which it relates, is recognized as an
adjustment to revenue (either as an increase in or a reduction of revenue) on a cumulative catch-up basis. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 and the year ended December 31, 2108, there were no modification to contract specifications.

Revenue is generally recognized when the customer obtains control of our product, which occurs at a point in time, and may be
upon shipment or upon delivery based on the contractual shipping terms of a contract, or upon installation when the combined performance
obligation is not distinct within the context of the contract. Service revenue is generally recognized over time as the services are delivered
to the customer based on the extent of progress towards completion of the performance obligation. The selection of the method to measure
progress towards completion requires judgment and is based on the nature of the products or services to be provided. Services are expected
to be delivered to the customer throughout the term of the contract and we believe recognizing revenue ratably over the term of the contract
best depicts the transfer of value to the customer.

If the contract contains a single performance obligation, the entire transaction price is allocated to the single performance
obligation. We enter into certain contracts that have multiple performance obligations, one or more of which may be delivered subsequent
to the delivery of other performance obligations. These performance obligations may include installation, training, maintenance and support
services. We allocate the transaction price based on the estimated relative standalone selling prices of the promised products or services
underlying each performance obligation. We determine standalone selling prices based on the price at which the performance obligation is
sold separately. If the standalone selling price is not observable through past transactions, we estimate the standalone selling price
considering available information such as market conditions and internally approved pricing guidelines related to the performance
obligations. Revenue is then allocated to the performance obligations using the relative selling prices of each of the performance
obligations in the contract.

For all performance obligations, we determine the revenue for each deliverable based on its relative selling price in the contract
and recognizes revenue upon delivery of the product or service, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. Revenue for
equipment is recognized when the equipment has been delivered, and installation and training have been completed. Revenue for warranty,
maintenance and support services is recognized ratably over the term of the service contract.
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Contract Liabilities

Our contract liabilities consist of billings in excess of revenue recognized. We classify deferred revenue as current or noncurrent
based on the timing of when it expects to recognize revenue. In order to determine revenue recognized in the period from contract
liabilities, we first allocate revenue to the individual contract liability balance outstanding at the beginning of the period until the revenue
exceeds that balance.

Our contract liabilities consist of billings in excess of revenue recognized. We classify deferred revenue as current or noncurrent
based on the timing of when it expects to recognize revenue. In order to determine revenue recognized in the period from contract
liabilities, we first allocate revenue to the individual contract liability balance outstanding at the beginning of the period until the revenue
exceeds that balance.

The table below details the activity in these deferred warranty and maintenance programs during the nine months ended September
30, 2018 and the year ended December 31, 2017, and the balance at the end of each period is included as deferred revenue in the table in
NOTE 6 below.

Nine Months
Ended Year
September 30, Ended December
2018 31,2017
Balance, beginning of period $ 30,690 $ 36,299
Additions 20,106 39,895
Transfer to revenue (38,824) (45,504)
Balance, end of period $ 11,972 $ 30,690

Disaggregation of Revenue

Our products consist of our software defined base station and remote radios and our network management and monitoring system
(“NMS”). We sell our products through our direct sales force. We also allow for 12-month warranties to be purchased on our products.
Warranty sales are deferred upon sale of our wireless communications products, to be recognized ratably over the 12-month warranty
period following the date of the related equipment sale. Our warranty includes 1) factory hardware repair or replacement, at our election,
of the base station and remote radios, 2) software upgrades, bug fixes and new features of the radio software and NMS, 3) deployment and
network architecture support and 4) technical support by phone and email. After 12 months, in order to maintain their hardware and
software, customers can purchase an annual maintenance program, which is recognized ratably over the 12-month period following the
date of purchase. We also provide ancillary services directly related to the sale of our wireless communications products including wireless
network design, systems engineering, radio frequency planning, software configuration, product training and onsite support.
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The following table summarizes revenue by revenue source for the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2018:

Three
Months Nine Months
Ended Ended

September 30, 2018

Major Products/Services

Product revenue $ 23,323 § 33,901
Service revenue 11,853 49,279
Total $ 35,176 $ 83,180

Timing of Revenue Recognition

Products transferred at a point in time $ 28,310 $ 44,356
Services transferred over time 6,866 38,824
Total $ 35,176 $ 83,180

Net Loss Per Common Share

Net loss per share for all periods presented is based on the equity structure of the legal acquirer, which assumes common stock is
outstanding and is reflected on a retrospective basis for all periods presented. Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by
the weighted average shares of common stock outstanding for each period. Diluted net loss per share is the same as basic net loss per share
since the Company has net losses for each period presented. The following common stock equivalents were excluded from the calculation
of diluted net loss per share for the periods indicated because including them would have had an anti-dilutive effect:

Potentially dilutive securities outlined in the table below have been excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share
because the effect of their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

For the Nine Months
Ended September 30,
2018 2017
Warrants to purchase common stock — 2,630,606
Options to purchase common stock — 3,606,052
Convertible debt 140,678 1,093,153
Total potentially dilutive securities 140,678 7,329,811

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs represent costs incurred for the issuance of debt. Once the associated debt instrument is issued, these costs
would be recorded as a debt discount and amortized using the effective interest method over the term of the related debt instrument. Upon
abandonment of a pending financing transaction, the related deferred financing costs are charged to interest expense.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash and accounts receivable. Cash is
deposited with a limited number of financial institutions. The balances held at any one financial institution may be in excess of Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance limits.
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Credit is extended to customers based on an evaluation of their financial condition and other factors. We generally do not require
collateral or other security to support accounts receivable. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and maintains an
allowance for doubtful accounts and sales credits.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”), 2018-13
that eliminates certain disclosure requirements for fair value measurements for all entities, requires public entities to disclose certain new
information and modifies some disclosure requirements. The FASB developed the amendments to Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) 820 as part of its broader disclosure framework project, which aims to improve the effectiveness of disclosures in the notes to
financial statements by focusing on requirements that clearly communicate the most important information to users of the financial
statements. The new guidance is effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019 and for interim periods within
those fiscal years. An entity is permitted to early adopt either the entire standard or only the provisions that eliminate or modify
requirements. We are currently evaluating the effect of this guidance on our disclosures.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-07, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee
Share-Based Payment Accounting (“ASU 2018-07”). The amendments in ASU 2018-07 expand the scope of Topic 718 to include share-
based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees. ASU 2018-07 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of
ASU 2018-07 on our financial statements.

In July 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-11 (“ASU 2017-117), Earnings Per Share (“Topic 260”), Distinguishing Liabilities from
Equity (“Topic 480), and Derivatives and Hedging (“Topic 815”). ASU 2017-11 is intended to simplify the accounting for financial
instruments with characteristics of liabilities and equity. Among the issues addressed are: (i) determining whether an instrument (or
embedded feature) is indexed to an entity’s own stock; (ii) distinguishing liabilities from equity for mandatorily redeemable financial
instruments of certain nonpublic entities; and (iii) identifying mandatorily redeemable non-controlling interests. ASU 2017-11 is effective
for the Company on January 1, 2019. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of ASU 2017-11 on our financial statements.

In August 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) (“ASU 2016-15"). ASU 2016-15 is intended to
reduce the diversity in practice regarding how certain transactions are classified within the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-15 became
effective for public business entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal
years. There was no material effect on our 2018 financial statements upon adoption.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation — Stock Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based
Payment Accounting (“ASU 2016-09”). This guidance simplifies several aspects of the accounting for employee share-based payment
transactions for both public and nonpublic entities, including the accounting for income taxes, forfeitures, and statutory tax withholding
requirements, as well as classification in the statement of cash flows. The guidance became effective for public business entities for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption was permitted in any annual or
interim period for which financial statements have not been issued or made available for issuance, but all of the guidance must be adopted
in the same period. If an entity early adopts the guidance in an interim period, any adjustments must be reflected as of the beginning of the
fiscal year that includes that interim period. There was no material effect on our2018 financial statements upon adoption.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (“ASU 2016-02”). The new standard establishes a right-of-use (“ROU”)
model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months.
Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income
statement. In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Leases — Targeted Improvements, to provide another transition method, allowing a
cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings during the period of adoption. The guidance is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We plan to adopt
the guidance on January 1, 2019. We are in the process of reviewing our lease agreements and evaluating the impact of this guidance on
our financial statements. We anticipate recording additional assets and corresponding liabilities on our balance sheets related to operating
leases within our lease portfolio upon adoption of this guidance.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The standard’s core
principle is that a company will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In doing so, companies will need to use
more judgment and make more estimates than under previous guidance. These may include identifying performance obligations in the
contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each
separate performance obligation. In July 2015, the FASB approved the proposal to defer the effective date of ASU 2014-09 standard by
one year. Early adoption was permitted after December 15, 2016, and the standard became effective for public entities for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods therein. In 2016, the FASB issued final amendments to clarify the
implementation guidance for principal versus agent considerations (ASU 2016-08), accounting for licenses of intellectual property and
identifying performance obligations (ASU 2016-10), narrow-scope improvements and practical expedients (ASU 2016-12) and technical
corrections and improvements to Topic 606 (ASU 2016-20) in its new revenue standard. We adopted this update on January 1, 2018 and the
adoption had no material impact to our financial statements.

NOTE 3 — OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of the following:

September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
Deposits $ 97,717 $ —
Prepaid expenses 35,987 13,768
Other receivables — 9,823
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS $ 133,704 $ 23,591
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NOTE 4 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,
2017

$ 39,382
25,272
41,685
30,367

September 30,
2018
Computer equipment $ 72,011
Software 65,257
Furniture and fixtures 53,904
Leasehold improvements 80,367
271,539

Less: accumulated depreciation

136,706
(123,850)

TOTAL PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT $

132,283 $ 12,856

Depreciation expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 was $15,405 and $11,530, respectively.

NOTE 5 — INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Our intangible assets include patent costs totaling $35,947 less amortization of patent costs of $77 at September 30, 2018. We had

no capitalized patent costs at December 31, 2017.

NOTE 6 — OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:

September 30,

December 31,
2017

Accrued payroll and other benefits $
Accrued interest

Deferred revenue

Other accrued expenses

Other current liabilities

$ 792,746
42,824

30,690

1,526

17,236

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES $

$ 885,022

NOTE 7 - NOTES PAYABLE AND OTHER FINANCING AGREEMENTS

Loan Agreements

In October 2007 Ondas Networks entered into a 6% per annum loan agreement with an entity in the amount of $550,000 in
connection with the issuance of common stock (the “October 2007 Note”). The original maturity of the October 2007 Note was September
30, 2011. On February 11, 2016, the entity and Ondas Networks entered into an agreement to amend the October 2007 Note to (i) extend
the maturity date to April 1, 2017 and (ii) clear and waive any existing defaults. On November 30, 2017, the entity and Ondas Networks
entered into an agreement to further amend the October 2007 Note to (i) transfer all accrued and unpaid interest ($17,310) as of December
31, 2017 to principal in January 2018, (ii) extend the maturity date to December 31, 2018, (iii) clear and waive any existing defaults, and
(iv) amend the interest rate to 10% per annum effective January 1, 2018. At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the outstanding

balance of the October 2007 Note was $567,310 and $550,000, respectively.
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In December 2013, Ondas Networks entered into a 10% per annum loan agreement with an entity in the amount of $225,000 (the
“December 2013 Note”). The original maturity of the December 2013 Note was December 31, 2014. In November 2014 Ondas Networks
entered into a second 10% per annum loan agreement with the entity in the amount of $210,000. (the “November 2014 Note”). The original
maturity of the November 2014 Note was March 16, 2015 (the Original Maturity Date”). The interest through the Original Maturity Date
was a fixed amount of $16,800. Subsequent to the Original Maturity Date, the November 2014 Note accrued interest at a rate of 18% per
annum. On September 15, 2015, Ondas Networks amended the November 2014 Note to decrease the interest rate to 10% per annum. On
February 11, 2016, the entity and Ondas Networks entered into an agreement to amend the December 2013 and November 2014 Notes to (i)
extend the maturity date to April 1, 2017 and (ii) clear and waive any existing defaults. On November 30, 2017, the entity and Ondas
Networks entered into an agreement to further amend the December 2013 and November 2014 Notes to (i) transfer all accrued and unpaid
interest on the December 2013 and November 2014 Notes ($60,679 and $49,170, respectively) as of December 31, 2017 to principal, (ii)
extend the maturity date to December 31, 2018 and (iii) clear and waive any existing defaults. At September 30, 2018 and December 31,
2017, the outstanding balance of the December 2013 and November 2014 Notes was $285,679 and $259,170, respectively.

In April 2015, Ondas Networks entered into a 10% per annum loan agreement with two individuals in the amount of $50,000 (the
“April 2015 Note”). The original maturity of the April 2015 Note was July 1, 2015 (the “Original Maturity Date”). The accrued interest on
the April 2015 Note through the Original Maturity Date was $4,000. Subsequent to the Original Maturity Date, the April 2015 Note accrues
interest at a rate of 10% per annum. On February 11, 2016, the individuals and Ondas Networks entered into an agreement to amend the
April 2015 Note to (i) extend the maturity date to April 1, 2017 and (ii) clear and waive any existing defaults. On November 30, 2017, the
individuals and Ondas Networks entered into an agreement to further amend the April 2015 Note to (i) transfer all accrued and unpaid
interest ($16,511) as of December 31, 2017 to principal, (ii) extend the maturity date to December 31, 2018 and (iii) clear and waive any
existing defaults. At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the outstanding balance of the April 2015 Note was $66,511.

In November 2016, Ondas Networks entered into a 20% per annum loan agreement with an individual in the amount of $250,000
(the “November 2016 Note”). The original maturity of the November 2016 Note was November 11, 2017. In December 2016 Ondas
Networks entered into a second 20% per annum loan agreement with the individual in the amount of $100,000. (the “December 2016
Note”). The original maturity of the December 2016 Note was December 20, 2016. On November 30, 2017, the individual and Ondas
Networks entered into an agreement to amend the November and December 2016 Notes to (i) transfer all accrued and unpaid interest on the
November and December 2016 Notes ($47,000 and $5,591, respectively) as of December 31, 2017 to principal, (ii) extend the maturity
date to December 31, 2018 and (iii) clear and waive any existing defaults. At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the outstanding
balance of the November and December Notes was $297,000 and $105,591, respectively.

In March 2017, Ondas Networks entered into a loan agreement with an individuals in the amount of $50,000 (the “March 2017
Note”). Accrued interest on the March 2017 Note was $10,000. The March 2017 Note and accrued interest were paid in full during 2017.
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Financing Agreement

During 2014 and 2015, Ondas Networks entered into certain unsecured financing agreements (the “Financing Agreements”) with
an entity. Interest on the Financing Agreements accrued at 30% per annum for the first 104 days of each Financing Agreement and at 51%
per annum thereafter. At December 31, 2015, the principal outstanding totaled $375,000 and accrued interest totaled $223,393. During
2016, and for the period from January 1, 2017 through November 17, 2017, additional interest was accrued totaling $191,250 and
$168,282, respectively. On November 17, 2017, the entity and Ondas Networks agreed to (i) transfer all accrued and unpaid interest to
principal, (ii) reduce the per annum interest rate to 10%, (iii) set the maturity date at December 31, 2018, and (iv) combine the Financing
Agreements into a single loan (“November 2017 Note”). As of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal
balance of the November 2017 Note was $957,925.

Promissory Notes

On December 14, 2015, Ondas Networks approved a private placement offering (“Private Placement”) seeking to sell to
purchasers certain of our 10% promissory notes in the aggregate face amount of $750,000 (“Private Placement Notes”) with a term of 18
months. In connection with the Private Placement Notes, each lender (the “Private Placement Noteholders™) received warrants to purchase
common stock (“Private Placement Warrants”), equal to 25% of the principal amount of the Private Placement Notes, exercisable at the
lower of (i) $2.00 per share or (ii) 40% of the selling price of Ondas Networks’ shares in its proposed initial public offering.

In December 2015, pursuant to the terms of security purchase agreements between Ondas Networks and each investor (each a
“Private Placement Note Purchase Agreement”), Ondas Networks completed the sale of $325,000 in principal amount of Private Placement
Notes to investors in private placements and issued Private Placement Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 81,250 Ondas Networks
Shares, with a term of ten years, an exercise price of $2.00 and a fair value of $63,398. As of January 1, 2018, the 81,250 Private Placement
Warrants were surrendered to Ondas Networks in exchange for participation in a private placement of Ondas Networks Shares dated April
13, 2018.

Between February and July 2016, pursuant to a Private Placement Note Purchase Agreement, Ondas Networks completed the sale
of $925,000 in principal amount of Private Placement Notes to investors in private placements and issued Private Placement Warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 231,250 Ondas Networks Shares, with a term of ten years, an exercise price of $2.00 and a fair value of $168,678.
As of January 1, 2018, the 231,250 Private Placement Warrants were surrendered to Ondas Networks in exchange for participation in a
private placement of Ondas Networks Shares dated April 13, 2018.

On November 30, 2017, the Private Placement Noteholders and Ondas Networks entered into agreements to amend the Private
Placement Notes to (i) transfer all accrued and unpaid interest ($118,682) as of December 31, 2017 to principal, (ii) extend the maturity
date to December 31, 2018 and (iii) clear and waive any existing defaults. At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the total
outstanding balance of the Private Placement Notes was $1,343,682.

Convertible Promissory Notes

During 2017, Ondas Networks and certain entities and individuals (the “Noteholder(s)”) entered into convertible promissory notes
defined herein as (i) notes with mutual conversion preferences (“Group 1 Notes”) and (ii) notes with unilateral conversion preferences
(“Group 2 Notes”).

Group 1 Notes. Between April 3, 2017 and August 1, 2017, convertible promissory notes in the aggregate amount of $1,865,000
were sold. Terms of the Group 1 Notes include (i) a maturity date based on the payment of the ratio of a Noteholders outstanding balance
relative to the total of Group 1 and Group 2 Notes times 6% of gross revenue until 1.5 times the amount of each individual note is paid, (ii)
the conversion price which is the lesser of (a) the price per share of common stock sold in a private placement or a public offering,
discounted by 20%, or (b) the price per share of common stock based on a pre-money Ondas Networks valuation of $50 million on a fully
diluted basis (the “Conversion Price”), (iii) the optional conversion, at any time after the closing of a private placement, wherein the
Noteholder may convert the outstanding loan amount into common shares at the Conversion Price, (iv) the mandatory conversion, any time
on or after a qualified public offering, wherein Ondas Networks may convert the outstanding loan amount into common shares at the
Conversion Price, and (v) upon any conversion, Ondas Networks shall issue to the Noteholder warrants to purchase share of common stock
equal to 10% of shares converted exercisable for three years at the Conversion Price.
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Group 2 Notes. Between September 2, 2017 and January 8, 2018, convertible promissory notes in the aggregate amount of
$1,175,000 were sold. Terms of the Group 2 Notes include (i) a maturity date based on the payment of the ratio of a Noteholders
outstanding balance relative to the total of Group 1 and Group 2 Notes times 6% of gross revenue until 1.5 times the amount of each
individual note is paid, (ii) the conversion price which is the lesser of (a) the price per share of common stock sold in a private placement or
a public offering, discounted by 20%, or (b) the price per share of common stock based on a pre-money Ondas Networks valuation of $50
million on a fully diluted basis (the “Conversion Price”), (iii) the mandatory conversion, any time on or after a qualified public offering,
wherein Ondas Networks may convert the outstanding loan amount into common shares at the Conversion Price, and (iv) upon the earlier
of a private placement, initial public offering, or fundamental change, Ondas Networks shall issue to the Noteholder warrants to purchase
share of common stock with an exercise price of $0.01 and exercisable for three years equal to the principal amount at the Conversion
Price.

On July 11, 2018, the Ondas Networks board of directors, by written consent, approved certain changes to outstanding
Convertible Promissory Notes. The action approved changes to the Group 2 Notes to match the Group 1 Notes and authorized the issuance
of a Security Holder Consent Agreement wherein each Group 2 Note holder would agree to the change. As of September 28, 2018, except
for one Group 2 Note holder, all other Group 2 Note holders have agreed to and executed their Security Holder Consent Agreement. The
Group 2 Note holder that did not agree to the Security Holder Consent Agreement will continue under the terms of the Group 2 Notes.

On September 28, 2018, in conjunction with the Merger Agreement discussed in NOTE 1, the Group 1 Note noteholders and all
but one Group 2 Note noteholders converted their outstanding Convertible Promissory Notes into an aggregate of 527,705 Ondas Networks
Shares and were subsequently exchanged for an aggregate of 2,017,416 Company Shares resulting in a gain of $3,976,992. This amount
was recorded as a gain on conversion of debt in our financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018.

Notes payable and other financing consists of:

September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
Short Term:
Loan Agreements $ 1,581,261 $ 1,563,951
Financing Agreement 957,925 957,925
Promissory Notes 1,343,682 1,343,682
$ 3,882,868 $ 3,865,558
Long Term:
Convertible Promissory Notes $ 300,000 $ 2,940,000
Debt Discount — (162,659)
$ 300,000 $ 2,777,341
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NOTE 8 -SECURED PROMISSORY NOTE

On March 9, 2018, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the “Agreement”) with an entity (the “Lender”) wherein the
Lender made available to us a loan in the aggregate principal amount of up to $10,000,000 (the “Loan”). On March 9, 2018, the Company
and the Lender entered into a Secured Term Promissory Note for $5,000,000, having a maturity date of September 9, 2019 (“Tranche A”).
The Note bears interest at a per annum rate equal to the greater of (a) 11.25% or (b) 11.25% plus the Prime Rate, less, 3.25%. The
Agreement also includes payments of $25,000 in loan commitment fees and $100,000 (1%) of the funding in loan facility charges. The loan
commitment fees and $50,000 in loan facility charges associated with Tranche A were recorded as debt discount and amortized ratably over
the life of the loan. There is also an end of term charge of $250,000. The end of term charge is being recorded as accreted costs over the
term of the loan. The Note is secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company. On October 9, 2018, the Company and the Lender
entered into a second Secured Term Promissory Note for $5,000,000, having a maturity date of April 9, 2020. See NOTE 11 —
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS for further details.

The Agreement also contains covenants which include certain restrictions with respect to subsequent indebtedness, liens, loans and
investments, asset sales and share repurchases and other restricted payments, subject to certain exceptions. The Agreement also contains
financial reporting obligations. An event of default under the Agreement includes, but is not limited to, breach of covenants, insolvency,
and occurrence of any default under any agreement or obligation of the Company. In addition, the Agreement contains a customary material
adverse effect clause which states that in the event of a material adverse effect, an event of default would occur and the lender has the
option to accelerate and demand payment of all or any part of the loan. A material adverse effect is defined in the Agreement as a material
change in our business, operations, properties, assets or financial condition or a material impairment of its ability to perform all obligations
under its Agreement. We were not in default of any conditions under the Loan and Security Agreements as of September 30, 2018. As of
September 30, 2018, the principal balance was $5,000,000, net of debt discount of $46,995 and accreted cost totaled $93,351.

NOTE 9 — STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In December 2014, we issued 3,000,000 Company Shares to our former sole officer and director at a price of $0.0001 per share.

In June and July 2017, pursuant to a private placement, we sold 440,000 Company Shares at $0.05 per share. Subsequent to this
private placement, on July 26, 2017 sole director of the Company approved a four (4) for one (1) forward split of our issued and
outstanding Company Shares (the “4:1 Forward Split”). Simultaneous with the 4:1 Forward Split, our sole director surrender 8,000,000
Company Shares, returning them to our authorized but unissued shares. At July 26, 2017, we had 5,760,000 Company Shares outstanding.

On August 1, 2018, our sole director approved a 10 for one (1) forward split of our issued and outstanding Company Shares (the
“10:1 Forward Split’), the effect of which increased the number of Company Shares issued and outstanding from 5,760,000 to 57,600,000.

In connection with the aforementioned Closing, we (i) amended and restated our articles of incorporation to increase our
authorized capital to 360,000,000 shares, consisting of 350,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, and 10,000,000
shares of “blank check” preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share, (ii) issued an aggregate of 25,463,732 Company Shares for all of the
then-outstanding Ondas Networks Shares, (iii) the former holders of the Ondas Networks Shares executed lock-up agreements (the “Lock-
Up Agreements”), which provide for an initial 12-month lock-up period followed by a subsequent 12-month limited sale period,
commencing with the date of Closing; and (iv) entered into a Common Stock Repurchase Agreement with an entity pursuant to which the
entity sold an aggregate of 32,600,000 shares of Company Shares (the “Repurchase Shares”) to us at $0.0001 per share, for an aggregate
consideration of $3,260. The Repurchase Shares were canceled and returned to our authorized but unissued shares. As of the Closing Date
and September 30, 2018, we had 50,463,732 Company Shares issued and outstanding.
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ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Equity Incentive Plan

In connection with the Closing, our board of directors approved, and our stockholders adopted, the 2018 Equity Incentive Plan
(the “2018 Plan”) pursuant to which 10 million Company Shares have been reserved for issuance to employees, including officers,
directors and consultants. No equity incentive instruments were outstanding at September 30, 2018.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal Proceedings

We may be involved in legal proceedings, claims and assessments arising in the ordinary course of business. Such matters are
subject to many uncertainties, and outcomes are not predictable with assurance. There are no such loss contingencies that are included in
the financial statements as of September 30, 2018.

Operating [ease

On November 11, 2013, Ondas Networks entered into a three-year lease agreement for 5,858 square feet of office space in
Sunnyvale, California expiring on December 31, 2017 with a base rent ranging from $2,929 to $9,079 per month plus certain various
expenses incurred. On October 16, 2017, Ondas Networks extended the lease agreement for an additional three years with an expiration
date of December 31, 2020 (“2018 Extension”). The base rent in the 2018 Extension is $12,597, $13,473 and $15,231 for 2018, 2019 and
2020, respectively.

The future minimum lease payments, including a 3% monthly maintenance fee, are as follows:

Years Ending

December 31,
2018 (3 months) $ 38,925
2019 $ 166,526
2020 $ 188,255

On June 15, 2018, effective June 1, 2018, Ondas Networks entered into a five-year lease agreement for approximately 15,200
square feet of office space in Sichuan Province, China expiring on May 31, 2023 with a base rent ranging from, in U.S. dollars,
approximately $9,200 to $9,700. Under the terms of the lease, the first three months are rent free and, we paid $28,000 in advance for the
second three months at the time of the execution of the lease. Ondas Networks also made a deposit payment of $15,000. The base rent is
approximately $9,200 for the period from June 1, 2018 through April 30, 2020 and approximately $9,700 for the period from May 1, 2020
through May 31, 2023. In addition to the base rent, we will pay a management fee of approximately $1,800 per month.
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The future minimum lease payments (allowing for exchange rates) are approximately as follows:

Years Ending
December 31,

2018 (3 months) $ 36,950
2019 $ 110,849
2020 $ 114,544
2021 $ 116,392
2022 $ 116,392
2023 $ 48,497

NOTE 11 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On June 27, 2018, Zev Turetsky, our former sole officer and director, forgave loans made to us in 2017 and during the six months
ended June 30, 2018 in the amount of $89,633. The amount forgiven was recorded as additional paid in capital on the accompanying
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

From time to time, the Ondas Networks’ Chief Executive Officer, Stewart Kantor, advanced funds to Ondas Networks to fund its
operations. As of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, advances due to Mr. Kantor were $0 and $155,645, respectively. These
advances are reported on our balance sheet as advance from related party.

At the Closing, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with Energy Capital, a greater than 10% stockholder the
Company, pursuant to which Energy Capital agreed to lend an aggregate principal amount of up to $10 million, subject to specified

conditions.

NOTE 12 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 9, 2018, the Company and the Lender entered into a second Secured Term Promissory Note for $5,000,000 having a
maturity date of April 9, 2020 (the “Second Note™) to complete the Loan and Security Agreement for $10,000,000 (the “Agreement”)
discussed in NOTE — 7 above. The Second Note bears interest at a per annum rate equal to the greater of (a) 11.25% or (b) 11.25% plus the
Prime Rate, less, 3.25%. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Company is required to pay a $50,000 loan facility charge.

On October 30, 2018, Ondas Networks entered into a Sublease with Texas Instruments Sunnyvale Incorporated, regarding the
sublease of approximately 21,982 square feet of rentable space in the building known as 165 Gibraltar Court, Sunnyvale, CA 94089,
constituting the entire first floor of the premises (except the lobby and two stairwells), as defined under that certain Lease dated April 12,
2004, as amended by the First Lease Amendment dated March 15, 2005, a Second Amendment to Lease dated November 30, 2005, and a
Third Amendment to Lease dated November 30, 2010 between Gibraltar Sunnyvale Holdings LLC and Texas Instruments Sunnyvale
Incorporated. The Sublease begins on November 1, 2018 and ends on February 28, 2021 at a base monthly rent of approximately $28,577.
A security deposit equal to one month’s rent will be held in trust and was due upon execution of the Sublease.

23




Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis provides information we believe to be relevant to an assessment and understanding of our
results of operations and financial condition. This discussion should be read together with our unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements and the related notes thereto that appear elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto and under the heading “Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on October 4, 2018,
as amended by Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A filed on October 22, 2018. In addition to historical information, the following discussion
and analysis includes forward-looking information that involves risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results and the timing of
events could differ materially from those anticipated by these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including those
discussed under “Risk Factors” in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 4, 2018, as amended by Amendment No. 1 on Form
8-K/A filed on October 22, 2018.

Overview

On September 28, 2018, we consummated a reverse acquisition transaction to acquire a privately-held company, Ondas Networks
Inc., and changed our name from “Zev Ventures Incorporated” to “Ondas Holdings Inc.” As a result, Ondas Networks Inc. (“Ondas
Networks”) became our wholly owned subsidiary and we refer to this transaction as the “Acquisition.” In connection with the closing of
the Acquisition, we discontinued the prior business of Zev Ventures as a reseller of sporting and concert tickets and our sole business
became that of Ondas Networks.

We design, manufacture, sell and support FullMAX, our multi-patented wireless radio systems for secure, wide area mission-
critical business-to-business networks. This radio system network provides point-to-multipoint, non-line of sight connectivity at
communication speeds comparable to broadband applications. We utilize licensed VHF and UHF spectrum in our networks. Since its
inception on February 26, 2006, Ondas Networks has devoted its efforts principally to research and development and raising capital. In
2018, Ondas Networks moved into the growth stage, investing in sales and marketing in order to build its customer base. Following the
Acquisition on September 28, 2018, our business became that of Ondas Networks.

We have incurred significant net losses since inception. As of September 30, 2018, our accumulated deficit was $24.2 million.
We expect to continue incurring substantial losses for the next several years as we continue to develop, manufacture and market our
technologies. Our operating expenses are comprised of research and development expenses, general and administrative expenses, and sales
and marketing expenses.

Our future capital requirements will depend upon many factors, including progress with developing, manufacturing and marketing
our technologies, the time and costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims and other
proprietary rights, our ability to establish collaborative arrangements, marketing activities and competing technological and market
developments, including regulatory changes and overall economic conditions in our target markets.

Our business consists of a single segment of products and services all of which are sold and provided in the United States and
certain international markets.

The Acquisition

On September 28, 2018, we entered into the Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization (the “Merger Agreement”) with
Zev Merger Sub, Inc. and Ondas Networks to acquire Ondas Networks. The transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement were
consummated on September 28, 2018 (the “Closing”), and pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, all outstanding shares of
common stock of Ondas Networks, $0.00001 par value per share, (the “Ondas Networks Shares”), were exchanged for shares of our
common stock, $0.0001 par value per share (the “Company Shares”). Accordingly, Ondas Networks became our wholly-owned subsidiary
and its business became the business of the Company.
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At the Closing, each Ondas Networks Share outstanding immediately prior to the Closing was exchanged for 3.823 Company
Shares (the “Exchange Ratio”), with all fractional shares rounded down to the nearest whole share. Accordingly, we issued an aggregate of
25,463,732 Company Shares for all of the then-outstanding Ondas Networks Shares.

In connection with the Closing, we amended and restated our articles of incorporation, effective September 28, 2018 to (i) change
our name to Ondas Holdings Inc., and (ii) increase our authorized capital to 360,000,000 shares, consisting of 350,000,000 shares of
common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, and 10,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share. In
connection with the Acquisition, our trading symbol changed to “ONDS” effective at the opening of business on October 5, 2018.

Also in connection with the Closing, (i) our sole director appointed additional individuals, who previously sat on the board of
Ondas Networks and its chief executive officer, to serve on our board of directors, and our board of directors subsequently appointed our
executive officers; (ii) the former holders of the Ondas Networks Shares executed lock-up agreements (the “Lock-Up Agreements”), which
provide for an initial 12-month lock-up period followed by a subsequent 12-month limited sale period, commencing with the date of the
Closing; (iii) we entered into a Common Stock Repurchase Agreement with an entity pursuant to which the entity sold an aggregate of
32,600,000 Company Shares (the “Repurchase Shares”) to us at $0.0001 per share, for an aggregate consideration of $3,260. The
Repurchase Shares were canceled and returned to our authorized but unissued shares; (iv) our board of directors approved, and our
stockholders adopted, the 2018 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2018 Plan”) pursuant to which 10 million Company Shares have been reserved
for issuance to employees, including officers, directors and consultants; and (v) we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with a
current stockholder of the Company, pursuant to which the stockholder agreed to lend the Company an aggregate principal amount of up to
$10 million, subject to specified conditions.

Recent Developments

On October 9, 2018, we issued a secured term promissory note in the principal amount of $5.0 million having a maturity date of
April 9, 2020 (the “Second Note”) to Steward Capital Holdings LP (“Steward Capital”) under the Loan and Security Agreement, dated as
of March 9, 2018 (the “Loan Agreement”), between Ondas Networks and Steward Capital. The Second Note bears interest at a per annum
rate equal to the greater of (a) 11.25% or (b) 11.25% plus the Prime Rate, less 3.25%. All amounts outstanding under the Second Note are
secured by a lien on our assets and become due and payable on the earlier to occur of September 19, 2019 or our completion of a capital
raise with minimum proceeds to us of $20.0 million. Pursuant to the terms of the Loan Agreement, we are required to pay a $50,000 loan
facility charge.

On October 30, 2018, Ondas Networks entered into a sublease agreement (the “Sublease”) with Texas Instruments Sunnyvale
Incorporated (the “Sublessor”) for approximately 21,982 rentable square feet consisting of the first floor of the building located at 165
Gibraltar Court, Sunnyvale, California (the “Premises”). The Sublessor leases the Premises from Gibraltar Sunnyvale Holdings, LLC (the
“Prime Landlord”) pursuant to a lease agreement dated April 12, 2004, as amended (the “Prime Lease”). The Sublease was consented to by
the Prime Landlord. The Premises will serve as the Company’s new corporate headquarters and principal office space. The term of the
Sublease is 32 months commencing on November 1, 2018 and expiring on February 28, 2021. Ondas Networks has no option to renew or
extend the Sublease under its terms. Ondas Networks will pay base rent of approximately $28,600 per month during the term, plus
additional monthly fees to cover operating expenses, certain legal fees due to the Sublessor and personal property taxes associated with the
Premises. Under the terms of the Sublease, Ondas Networks is entitled to an abatement of the monthly base rent for the first two months of
the term. In connection with the execution of the Sublease, Ondas Networks delivered to the Sublessor a cash security deposit in the
amount of $28,600.
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Key Components of Our Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Revenues

Our revenues are derived principally from the sale of our multi-patented wireless radio system FullMAX. We also provide a
warranty/maintenance program wherein we offer such services through an annual contract. The warranty/maintenance contract requires
payment in full at the time of execution of the contract. Revenue from the warrant/maintenance contract is initial recorded as deferred
revenue and is subsequently recorded as income spread equitably over the term of the contract. Due to the ongoing development and
commercialization process of our FullMAX solutions, our revenues have historically been generated by equipment trial and pilot programs
and related services, in addition to a modest number of full network deployments. In addition, we have historically had limited sales and
customer service resources to support higher sales volumes. In 2018, we expanded our customer sales and service personnel across multiple
industries which we expect to lead to a larger number of sales opportunities and revenue in 2019.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales is comprised primarily of the cost of components included in our FullMAX system and other costs associated
with the assembly and delivery thereto. We expect our investment in expanding our customer sales and service efforts to lead to increased
volume of FullMAX equipment sales in future periods, which will lead to higher costs of sales. Higher unit sales volume will provide scale
manufacturing opportunities which could lead to a decline in the cost of sales as a percentage of revenue in future periods.

General and Administration

General and administration expenses primarily include salary and benefit expense, legal and accounting services, professional
services, rent and facilities costs, general liability insurances, and travel expenses. We expect these expenses to increase as a result of
continued growth in headcount and support of our business and operations.
Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses primarily include salary and benefit expense, trade shows, marketing programs and promotional
material, travel expenses, and the allocation of certain facility costs. We expect these expenses to increase as a result of continued growth in
headcount and support of our business and operations.
Research and Development

Research and development expenses primarily include salary and benefit expense and costs for contractors engaged in research,
design and development activities including intellectual property, travel expenses, and the allocation of certain facility costs. We expect our

research and development costs to increase as we continue making investments in developing new products in addition to new versions of
FullMAX.
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Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) primarily includes interest expense, amortization of debt discount, changes in fair value of derivative
liability, gains on the conversion of debt and other miscellaneous income and expenses.

Results of Operations

Three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to three months ended September 30, 2017

Three months ended

September 30,
Increase
2018 2017 (Decrease)
(000s)

Revenue $ 35 § 40 $ %)
Cost of sales 6 16 (10)
Gross profit 29 24 5
Operating expenses:

General and administrative 613 557 56

Sales and marketing 602 116 486

Research and development 887 214 673
Total operating expense 2,102 887 1,215
Operating loss (2,073) (863) (1,210)
Other income (expense) 1,625 (173) 1,798
Net loss $ (448) $ (1,036) $ 588

Revenue

Our revenue was approximately $35,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to approximately $40,000 for
the three months ended September 30, 2017. The reduction in revenue was a result of a decrease in product sales.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales was approximately $6,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to $16,000 for the same
period in 2017. The decrease in cost of sales was a result of changes in product mix and a reduction in product costs.

Gross profit

Gross profit was approximately $29,000 and approximately $24,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, with gross margin of 83% and 60%, respectively. The increase in gross margin was primarily due to changes in product mix
and a reduction in product costs, partially offset by a decrease in product sales.
General and administration expenses

General and administration expenses were approximately $613,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to

$557,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2017, an increase of approximately $56,000. The change is primarily a result of
increases in personnel costs related to additional headcount.
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Sales and marketing expenses

Sales and marketing expenses were approximately $602,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to
approximately $116,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2017, an increase of approximately $486,000. This increase was
primarily due to the salaries and payroll-related expenses for additional headcount, as we expanded our sales team to support planned
increase in sales of our FullMAX solutions.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses were approximately $887,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2018 compared to
approximately $214,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2017, an increase of approximately $673,000. This increase was
primarily due to increased contract activity with our third-party development partner related to continuing development of our FullMAX
product line.

Other income (expense)

For the three months ended September 30, 2018, other income (expense) was approximately $1.6 million of income, primarily as a
result of a gain on conversion of debt totaling approximately $4 million, partially offset by interest expense totaling approximately $2.4
million. For the three months ended September 30, 2017, other income (expense) of approximately $173,000 was primarily composed of

interest expense.

Nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to nine months ended September 30, 2017

Nine months ended

September 30,
Increase
2018 2017 (Decrease)
(000s)

Revenue $ 83 $ 209 $ (126)
Cost of sales 15 63 (48)
Gross profit 68 146 (78)
Operating expenses:

General and administration 1,160 1,052 108

Sales and marketing 1,143 351 792

Research and development 1,719 656 1,063
Total operating expense 4,022 2,059 1,963
Operating loss (3,954) (1,913) (2,041)
Other income (expense) 105 (494) 599
Net loss $ (3,849) $ (2,407) $ (1,442)

Revenue

Our revenue was approximately $83,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to approximately $209,000 for
the nine months ended September 30, 2017. The reduction in revenue was a result of a decrease in product sales.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales was approximately $15,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to $63,000 for the same
period in 2017. The decrease in cost of sales was a result of changes in product mix and a reduction in product costs.
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Gross profit

Gross profit was approximately $68,000 and approximately $146,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, with gross margin of 82% and 70%, respectively. The increase in gross margin was primarily due to changes in product mix
and a reduction in product costs, partially offset by a decrease in product sales.

General and administration expenses

General and administration expenses were approximately $1.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to
$1.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2017, an increase of approximately $108,000. The change is primarily a result of
increases in personnel costs related to additional headcount.

Sales and marketing expenses

Sales and marketing expenses were approximately $1.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to
approximately $351,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2017, an increase of approximately $792,000. This increase was
primarily due to the salaries and payroll-related expenses for additional headcount, as we expanded our sales team to support the planned
increase in sales of our FullMAX solutions.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses were approximately $1.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to
approximately $656,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2017, an increase of approximately $1.1 million. This increase was
primarily due to increased contract activity with our third-party development partner related to continuing development of our FullMAX
product line.

Other income (expense)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2018, other income (expense) was approximately $105,000 of income, primarily as a
result of gains on conversion of debt totaling approximately $4 million partially offset by (i) change in fair value of derivative liability
totaling approximately $953,000 and (ii) interest expense totaling approximately $3 million. For the nine months ended September 30,
2017, other income (expense) was approximately $493,000 of expense, primarily composed of interest expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have incurred losses since inception. As of September 30, 2018, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $24.2
million and notes payable of approximately $9.2 million, including approximately $3.9 million due and payable on December 31, 2018 and
$5 million due and payable on September 29, 2019. As of September 30, 2018, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
$516,000 and a working capital deficit of approximately $9.8 million. We have historically funded our operations primarily through debt
and the sale of capital stock.

We believe our existing cash and cash equivalents as well as the $5 million in borrowings we drew down in October 2018 (see
NOTES 7 and 12 in Item 1 of Part I of this report for further details) will be sufficient to fund our operating expenses and certain debt
service requirements through December 31, 2018. At December 31, 2018 debt obligations totaling approximately $4 million mature and
must be repaid. We currently do not have sufficient funds to repay those debt obligations and must secure additional equity or debt capital
in order to repay those obligations, of which no assurance can be provided that we can obtain the needed funding on commercially
reasonable terms or at all.
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Under our credit facility with Energy Capital, LLC (“Energy Capital”), we may borrow up to $10 million and we intend to draw
down funds beginning in January 2019; however, funds from this credit facility are not available to repay existing indebtedness.

Our ability to generate revenue and achieve profitability depends on our completion of our second-generation products and
commencing the manufacture, marketing and sales of those products. Beyond the $10 million made available through the Energy Capital
credit facility, we have no commitments for any additional funding and no assurance can be provided that we will be able to raise the
needed funds on commercially acceptable terms or at all. These factors raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern through November 13, 2019. The financial information contained in Item 1 of Part I of this report have been prepared on a basis
that assumes that we will continue as a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities and
commitments in the normal course of business. This financial information and these financial statements do not include any adjustments
that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Until we can generate significant revenues from operations, we will need to satisfy our future cash needs through public or private
sales of our equity securities, sales of debt securities, incurrence of debt from commercial lenders, strategic collaborations, or licensing a
portion or all of our technology. We cannot be sure that future funding will be available to us when we need it on terms that are acceptable
to us, or at all. We sell securities and incur debt when the terms of such transactions are deemed favorable to us and as necessary to fund
our current and projected cash needs. The amount of funding we raise through sales of our common stock or other securities depends on
many factors, including, but not limited to, the status and progress of our product development programs, projected cash needs, availability
of funding from other sources, our stock price and the status of the capital markets. Due to the recent volatile nature of the financial
markets, equity and debt financing may be difficult to obtain. In addition, any unfavorable development in the progress of our development,
manufacturing, sales or marketing activities could have a material adverse impact on our ability to raise additional capital.

Summary of (Uses) and Sources of Cash

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2018 2017
(000s)
Net cash used in operating activities $ 4,643) $ (2,306)
Net cash used in investing activities $ (186) $ —
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 4,885 § 2,319

Operating Activities

The principal use of cash in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 was to fund our current expenses
primarily related to product development and sales and marketing activity. The increase of approximately $2.3 million in cash used in
operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared with the same period in 2017 was due primarily to an increase
in our operating loss.

Investing Activities

An increase in spending on fixed assets and patents resulted in an increase in cash used in investing activities for the nine months
ended September 30, 2018 compared with the same period in 2017.
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Financing Activities

Financing activities represent the principal source of our cash flow. Our financing activities for the nine months ended September
30, 2018 provided net cash of approximately $4.9 million, which primarily consisted of approximately $5.1 million in proceeds from the
issuance of convertible debt, partially offset by the repayment of advances from a related party. The cash provided by financing activities
during the nine months ended September 30, 2017 included approximately $2.1 million in proceeds from the issuance of convertible debt
and approximately $200,000 in proceeds from advances from related parties.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2018, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements.
Contractual Obligations

As a “smaller reporting company” as defined by Item 10 of Regulation S-K, we are not required to provide this information.
Critical Accounting Estimates

Please refer to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 4, 2018, as amended by Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A filed on
October 22, 2018, including the audited financial statements and notes included therein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”), 2018-13
that eliminates certain disclosure requirements for fair value measurements for all entities, requires public entities to disclose certain new
information and modifies some disclosure requirements. The FASB developed the amendments to Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) 820 as part of its broader disclosure framework project, which aims to improve the effectiveness of disclosures in the notes to
financial statements by focusing on requirements that clearly communicate the most important information to users of the financial
statements. The new guidance is effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019 and for interim periods within
those fiscal years. An entity is permitted to early adopt either the entire standard or only the provisions that eliminate or modify
requirements. We are currently evaluating the effect of this guidance on our disclosures.

In June 2018, the FASB issued “ASU” 2018-07, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to
Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting (“ASU 2018-07"). The amendments in ASU 2018-07 expand the scope of Topic 718 to
include share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees. ASU 2018-07 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating
the impact of ASU 2018-07 on our financial statements.

In July 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-11 (“ASU 2017-117), Earnings Per Share (“ASC 260”), Distinguishing Liabilities from
Equity (“ASC 480”), and Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”). ASU 2017-11 is intended to simplify the accounting for financial
instruments with characteristics of liabilities and equity. Among the issues addressed are: (i) determining whether an instrument (or
embedded feature) is indexed to an entity’s own stock; (ii) distinguishing liabilities from equity for mandatorily redeemable financial
instruments of certain nonpublic entities; and (iii) identifying mandatorily redeemable non-controlling interests. ASU 2017-11 is effective
for the Company on January 1, 2019. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of ASU 2017-11 on our financial statements.
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In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) (“ASU 2016-15”). ASU 2016-15 is
intended to reduce the diversity in practice regarding how certain transactions are classified within the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-
15 is effective for public business entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those
fiscal years. There was no material effect on the 2018 financial statements upon adoption.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation — Stock Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based
Payment Accounting (“ASU 2016-09”). This guidance simplifies several aspects of the accounting for employee share-based payment
transactions for both public and nonpublic entities, including the accounting for income taxes, forfeitures, and statutory tax withholding
requirements, as well as classification in the statement of cash flows. The guidance is effective for public business entities for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption was permitted in any annual or interim
period for which financial statements have not been issued or made available for issuance, but all of the guidance was required to be
adopted in the same period. If an entity early adopted the guidance in an interim period, any adjustments were required to be reflected as of
the beginning of the fiscal year that includes that interim period. We adopted this update on January 1, 2017 and there was no material
effect on our financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (“ASU 2016-02”). The new standard establishes a right-of-use (“ROU”)
model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months.
Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the income
statement. In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11 to provide another transition method, allowing a cumulative effect adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings during the period of adoption. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We plan to adopt the guidance on January 1,
2019. We are in the process of reviewing our lease agreements and evaluating the impact of this guidance on our financial statements. We
anticipate recording additional assets and corresponding liabilities on our balance sheets related to operating leases within our lease
portfolio upon adoption of this guidance.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The standard’s core
principle is that a company will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In doing so, companies will need to use
more judgment and make more estimates than under previous guidance. These may include identifying performance obligations in the
contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each
separate performance obligation. In July 2015, the FASB approved the proposal to defer the effective date of ASU 2014-09 standard by
one year. Early adoption was permitted after December 15, 2016, and the standard became effective for public entities for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods therein. In 2016, the FASB issued final amendments to clarify the
implementation guidance for principal versus agent considerations (ASU 2016-08), accounting for licenses of intellectual property and
identifying performance obligations (ASU 2016-10), narrow-scope improvements and practical expedients (ASU 2016-12) and technical
corrections and improvements to topic 606 (ASU 2016-20) in its new revenue standard. We adopted this update on January 1, 2018 and the
adoption had no impact to our financial statements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

As a “smaller reporting company” as defined by Item 10 of Regulation S-K, the Company is not required to provide information
required by this item.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports filed or
submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time period specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms and is accumulated and communicated to our management, as appropriate, in order to allow timely decisions in connection with
required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, have evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act as of the end
of the period covered by this quarterly report on Form 10-Q.

Based on such evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, have concluded that as of September 30,
2018, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to
disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods
specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Known
material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting are summarized in the following paragraph.

As of September 30, 2018, we had limited employees and our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer were
responsible for initiating transactions, had custody of assets, recorded and reconciled transactions and prepared our quarterly financial
reports without the sufficient segregation of conflicting duties normally required for effective internal control. We believe that the lack of
segregation of duties is a material weakness in our internal controls at September 30, 2018 affecting management’s ability to conclude that
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

While we intend to remediate the above-noted material weakness in the future, there is no assurance that we can remediate any
control deficiencies in a timely manner.

Changes in Internal Control

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in management’s evaluation pursuant to Rules
13a-15(d) or 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act during the three months ended September 30, 2018 that materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, management
recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial
reporting must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that management is required to apply judgment in evaluating the
benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

We are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings.
Item 1A. Risk Factors.

For information regarding known material risks that could affect our results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, please
see the information under the heading “Risk Factors” in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 4, 2018, as
amended by Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A filed on October 22, 2018.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

On September 28, 2018, in connection with the Acquisition, each outstanding share of Ondas Networks common stock was
exchanged for 3.823 shares of Company common stock. We issued an aggregate of 25,463,732 shares of Company common stock upon
such exchange of the outstanding shares of Ondas Networks common stock, which included no more than 35 non-accredited investors. The
shares issued in conjunction with the Acquisition were issued in reliance upon an exemption from registration pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of
the Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D (“Regulation D) promulgated under the Securities Act, relative to transactions not
involving a public offering.

Repurchase of Securities by Issuer

In connection with the Acquisition, we entered into a Common Stock Repurchase Agreement with Energy Capital pursuant to
which Energy Capital sold an aggregate of 32,600,000 shares of our common stock, or the Repurchase Shares, to us at $0.0001 per share,
for an aggregate consideration of $3,260. The Repurchase Shares were canceled and returned to our authorized but unissued shares of
common stock.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information.

None.
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Item 6. Exhibits.

Incorporated
by Reference
Filed herein from SEC
Exhibit Here- Form File/Reg.
No. Exhibit Description with or Schedule Filing Date Number
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
dated as of September 28. 2018, by and among the (Exhibit 2.1)
Registrant, Zev__Merger Sub, Inc. and Ondas
Networks Inc.
3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
the Registrant. (Exhibit 3.1)
32 Bylaws of the Registrant. Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
(Exhibit 3.2)
4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate. Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
(Exhibit 4.1)
4.2 Form of Lock-up Agreement executed by the Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
former stockholders of Ondas Networks Inc. (Exhibit 10.1)
4.3 Common Stock Repurchase Agreement, dated as of Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
September 28. 2018 between Registrant and (Exhibit 10.2)
Energy Capital, LLC.
4.4 Form of Secured Promissory Note issued to Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
Steward Capital Holdings LP by Ondas Networks (Exhibit 10.10)
Inc., dated March 19, 2018.
4.5 Form of Secured Promissory Note issued to Form 8-K 10/15/2018 333-205271
Steward Capital Holdings LP by Ondas Networks (Exhibit 10.2)
Inc., dated October 9. 2018.
4.6 Form of Revenue Loan Agreement Convertible X
Promissory Note issued by Ondas Networks Inc.
(formerly Full Spectrum Inc.)
4.7 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement of Ondas X
Networks Inc. (formerly Full Spectrum Inc.)
10.1.1 Lease Agreement dated November 11, 2013 Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
between Full Spectrum Inc. and SCP-1, LP. (Exhibit 10.3)
10.1.2 Amendment to Lease Agreement dated October 16, Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
2017 between Full Spectrum Inc. and SCP-1, LP. (Exhibit 10.4)
10.2 Loan and Security Agreement, by and between Full Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
Spectrum Inc. and Steward Capital Holdings., LP, (Exhibit 10.8)
dated as of March 9. 2018.
10.3 Loan and Security Agreement, by and between Zev Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
Ventures Incorporated and Energy Capital, LLC, (Exhibit 10.9)
dated as of September 28, 2018.
10.4# Employment Agreement dated as of September 28 Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271

2018 between Registrant and Eric A. Brock.

(Exhibit 10.5)
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-10.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-10.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010863/s113291_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010863/s113291_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-4.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-8.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-8.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-9.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-9.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-5.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1646188/000161577418010488/s113023_ex10-5.htm

10.5# Employment Agreement dated as of September 28 Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
2018 between Registrant and Stewart Kantor. (Exhibit 10.6)

10.6# 2018 Incentive Stock Plan. Form 8-K 10/4/2018 333-205271
(Exhibit 10.7)

31.1 Certification __of the  Registrant’s _ Principal X
Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of the Registrant’s Principal Financial X
Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0of 2002.

32* Certification of Principal Executive Officer and X

Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document X

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document X

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase X
Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase X
Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase X
Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase X
Document

# Denotes management compensation plan or contract.

* The certifications attached as Exhibit 32 that accompany this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are not deemed filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Ondas Holdings Inc. under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of such
Form 10-Q), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DATE: November 13, 2018
ONDAS HOLDINGS INC.

By: /s/ Eric Brock

Eric Brock
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Stewart Kantor

Stewart Kantor
President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 4.6

THIS INSTRUMENT AND ANY SECURITIES ISSUABLE PURSUANT HERETO HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF
CERTAIN STATES. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED
OR HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS
PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM.

REVENUE LOAN AGREEMENT
(Convertible Promissory Note)

Date of Loan:

Principal Amount of Loan: $

Name of Lender:

Address of Lender:

Social Security Number/ Tax ID:

Bank Details of Lender if Payment requested by Wire:

Name of Bank:

Address of Bank:

ABA:

Account #:

For value received Full Spectrum Inc., a Delaware company (the “Borrower” or the “Company”), hereby promises to pay to the
order of (“Lender”), in lawful money of the United States of America and in immediately available funds, the
Repayment Amount (as defined below) in the manner set forth below.

1.  Definitions.

(a) “Fully-Diluted Basis” shall mean the assumption that all options, warrants or other convertible securities or
instruments or other rights to acquire shares of common stock of the Company (the “Common Stock”) have been exercised or converted, as
applicable, in full, provided that any such options, warrants, convertible securities or instruments or other rights are then vested or
exercisable or convertible in accordance with their terms.

(b) “Conversion Price” shall mean (subject to adjustment under Section 5.3) the lesser of the (i) price per share of
Common Stock sold in the Private Placement, discounted by 20%, and (ii) the price per share of Common Stock based on a pre-money
Company valuation of $50 million on a Fully Diluted Basis.




(c) “Gross Revenues” means all of the Borrower’s cash receipts, from all sales of any kind, including prepaid licenses,
less returns or shipping, and without any deduction or offset of any other kind, as recorded on its financial statements.

(d) “Fundamental Change” means (a) the sale, lease or other disposition (in one or a series of related transactions) of all
or substantially all of the Company’s assets to one Person or a group of Persons acting in concert, under circumstances in which the holders
of the share capital of the Company immediately prior to such transaction do not beneficially own more than a majority in voting power of
the outstanding share capital of the acquiring Person(s) immediately following such transaction (b) the sale, exchange or transfer, in one or
a series of related transactions, of a majority of the outstanding share capital of the Company to one Person or a group of Persons acting in
concert, under circumstances in which the holders of the share capital of the Company immediately prior to such transaction do not
beneficially own more than a majority in voting power of the outstanding share capital of the Person(s) acquiring the share capital of the
Company following such transaction, or (c¢) a merger, consolidation, amalgamation, recapitalization, reclassification, reorganization or
similar business combination transaction involving the Company under circumstances in which holders of the share capital of the Company
immediately prior to such transaction do not beneficially own more than a majority in voting power of the outstanding share capital of the
Company, or the surviving or resulting corporation or acquirer, as the case may be, immediately following such transaction.

(e)  “IPO Conversion Price” shall mean (subject to adjustment under Section 5.3) the /esser of the (i) price per share of
Common Stock sold in the Qualified Public Offering, discounted by 20%, and (ii) price per share of Common Stock based on a pre money
Company valuation of $50 million on a Fully Diluted Basis.

(f)  “Lenders” means all of the purchasers of Notes in the offering of which this Note is a part.
(2 “Note” means this Note. “Notes” means all of the Notes issued in the offering of which this Note is a part.
(h) “Private Placement” means the first financing transaction after the issuance of the Note to Lender in which the

Company receives gross proceeds of at least $150,000 through the private placement or sale of shares of Common Stock of the Company,
excluding the sale of shares to employees, the exercise of options and warrants existing as of this date and the issuance (sale) of options and
warrants.

(1) “Pro-Rata Share” or a Lender’s “ratable interest” or the like shall be deemed to refer, at any time, to a fraction, the
numerator of which is the initial amount of the Notes issued to such Lender, and the denominator of which is the total amount of the Notes
issued in this offering.

)] “Qualified Public Offering (IPO)” shall mean an initial public offering or other transaction which results in the
Company becoming a reporting Company pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, such as a reverse merger, provided
the Company raises gross proceeds of at least $15,000,000.




(k)  “Repayment Amount’ means amount that is 1.5 the amount of the Loan.

0] “Revenue Percentage” means 6%. All Lenders in the offering who invest the same amount will receive the same
Revenue Percentage based on the amount of their Loans.

2.  Basic Terms.

(a)  Group of Revenue Loans. This Loan is issued as part of a group of identical loans issued to a number of investors in
the offering.

(b) When Paid in Full. The loan will be considered paid in full and this agreement will terminate when the Borrower has
paid the Lender the Repayment Amount.

(c) Interest Rate. The interest rate on this Loan is a function of the time it takes the Borrower to repay the Repayment
Amount. To the extent allowed under applicable law, the revenue share will not be considered interest under state usury laws.

(d)  Maturity. Notwithstanding anything else herein the Repayment Amount (to the extent unpaid and not otherwise
converted pursuant to section 5.2(a)) is due and payable in full on the tenth anniversary of the Date of Loan.

3. Payments.

(a)  Quarterly Payments. On each of June 30, September 30, December 31° and March 31st (each a “Measurement
Period”), Borrower shall make payments to the Lender until the Repayment Amount is repaid in full.

(b)  Amount of Each Payment. The amount of each payment shall be the product of the Revenue Percentage and the
Gross Revenues from the Measurement Period ended immediately prior to the payment date (the “Payment”).

(c) Timing of Payment. The Borrower will make the payment to the Lender hereunder (or cause the payments to be
made through an agent) within forty five (45) days of the end of each Measurement Period.

(d)  Order of Application of Payments. All Payments under this Agreement shall be applied first to interest and then to
principal.

(e)  Place of Payment. All amounts payable hereunder shall be payable by check sent to address of Lender or by wire or
electronic transfer to bank account of Lender, as specified in writing by Lender.

(f)  Pro Rata Payments. Each Payment will be divided pro rata among all of the Lenders.




4. Prepayment. The Borrower may pay off all of the Loans in their entirety at any time by paying the Lenders any unpaid part
of the Repayment Amount for all of the Loans. The Borrower may make partial prepayments, provided that all partial prepayments shall be
made pro rata among all of the Lenders based on the amount of their Loans to the Borrower.

5. Warrants.

5.1 Upon the earlier of closing of the Private Placement, an IPO or a Fundamental Change, the Company shall issue to Lender
penny warrants, in form attached hereto as Annex 1, for the purchase of Common Stock in an amount equal to the principal amount of Loan
(notwithstanding any repayment, in whole or in part, of the Loan) divided by the Conversion Price or in the event of an IPO, the [PO
Conversion Price.

5.2 (a) Mandatory Conversion. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Company may at any time on or after a
Qualified Public Offering deliver a notice to the Lender (a “Mandatory Conversion Notice” and the date such notice is received by the
Lender, the “Mandatory Conversion Notice Date”) to cause the Lender to immediately convert any unpaid Repayment Amount as of such
date into Common Stock at the IPO Conversion Price (a “Mandatory Conversion™).

(b) The Lender acknowledges that the Common Stock received pursuant to the Mandatory Conversion will be subject to lock-up
provisions contained herein. The Lender agrees not to sell, transfer, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of all or any part of such
Common Stock without the approval of the Company for a period of six months commencing upon the closing of the Company’s initial
public offering. Lender agrees to provide to the Company underwriters of any public offering such further agreements as such underwriter
may reasonably request in connection with this lock-up agreement.

Each certificate for the Common Stock shall contain a legend on the face thereof, in substantially the following form:

“THE SECURITIES EVIDENCED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS. NO SALE OR DISPOSITION MAY BE EFFECTED WITHOUT (i)
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENTS RELATED THERETO, (ii) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL OR OTHER EVIDENCE
REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY, THAT SUCH REGISTRATIONS ARE NOT REQUIRED, (iii) RECEIPT OF
NO-ACTION LETTERS FROM THE APPROPRIATE GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES.

THE SECURITIES EVIDENCED ARE SUBJECT TO A LOCKUP AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, TRANSFERRED,
PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED DURING THE TERM OF THE LOCKUP.”

5.3  Adjustment of Conversion Price. The Conversion Price and IPO Conversion Price shall be subject to adjustment from time
to time as follows:

(a)  Adjustments for Stock Splits and Combinations. If the Company shall at any time or from time to time after the Date of
the Loan, effect a stock split of the outstanding Common Stock, the applicable Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to the stock
split shall be proportionately decreased. If the Lender shall at any time or from time to time after the Date of the Loan, combine the
outstanding shares of Common Stock, the applicable Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to the combination shall be
proportionately increased. Any adjustments under this Section 5.3(a) shall be effective at the close of business on the date the stock split or
combination occurs.




(b)  Adjustments for Certain Dividends and Distributions. If the Lender shall at any time or from time to time after the Date of
the Loan, make or issue or set a record date for the determination of holders of Common Stock entitled to receive a dividend or other
distribution payable in shares of Common Stock, then, and in each event, the applicable Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to
such event shall be decreased as of the time of such issuance or, in the event such record date shall have been fixed, as of the close of
business on such record date, by multiplying, the applicable Conversion Price then in effect by a fraction:

(1) the numerator of which shall be the total number of shares of Common Stock issued and
outstanding immediately prior to the time of such issuance or the close of business on such record date; and

2) the denominator of which shall be the total number of shares of Common Stock issued and
outstanding immediately prior to the time of such issuance or the close of business on such record date plus the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable in payment of such dividend or distribution.

(c)  Adjustments for Reclassification, Exchange or Substitution. 1f the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note
at any time or from time to time after the Date of Loan shall be changed to the same or different number of shares of any class or classes of
stock, whether by reclassification, exchange, substitution or otherwise (other than by way of a stock split or combination of shares or stock
dividends provided for in Sections 5.3(a), or a reorganization, merger, consolidation, or sale of assets provided for in Section 5.3(d)), then,
and in each event, an appropriate revision to the Conversion Price shall be made and provisions shall be made (by adjustments of the
Conversion Price or otherwise) so that the Lender shall have the right thereafter to convert this Note into the kind and amount of shares of
stock and other securities receivable upon reclassification, exchange, substitution or other change, by holders of the number of shares of
Common Stock into which such Note might have been converted immediately prior to such reclassification, exchange, substitution or other
change, all subject to further adjustment as provided herein.

(e)  Adjustments for Reorganization, Merger, Consolidation or Sales of Assets . If at any time or from time to time after the
Date of Loan there shall be a capital reorganization of the Company (other than by way of a stock split or combination of shares or stock
dividends or distributions provided for in Section 5.3(a), or a reclassification, exchange or substitution of shares provided for in Section 5.3
(c)), or a merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another corporation where the holders of Company outstanding voting
securities prior to such merger or consolidation do not own over fifty percent (50%) of the outstanding voting securities of the merged or
consolidated entity, immediately after such merger or consolidation, or the sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s properties or
assets to any other person (an “Organic Change”), then as a part of such Organic Change, an appropriate revision to the Conversion Price
shall be made and provision shall be made (by adjustments of the Conversion Price or otherwise) so that the Lender shall have the right
thereafter to convert such Note into the kind and amount of shares of stock and other securities or property of the Company or any
successor corporation resulting from Organic Change into which such Note might have been converted immediately prior to such Organic
Change.




(e) Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued upon conversion of this Note. In lieu of any
fractional shares to which the Lender would otherwise be entitled, the Company shall pay cash equal the fair market value of a share of
Common Stock as determined by the Company.

5.4 The terms and conditions of this section 5 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

6. Characterization of Investment. The parties agree that they shall treat this agreement as a loan for financial and tax and all
other applicable purposes, and not as equity. The Lender agrees to comply with all applicable laws governing the making of loans to
businesses in the jurisdiction in which they are resident.

7. Default. Each of the following events shall be an “Event of Default” hereunder:

(a) Borrower fails to pay any of the outstanding principal amount due under this Note on the date the same becomes due
and payable or within five business days thereafter or any accrued interest or other amounts due under this Note on the date the same
becomes due and payable or within five business days thereafter;

(b) Borrower files any petition or action for relief under any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or moratorium law or
any other law for the relief of, or relating to, debtors, now or hereafter in effect, or makes any assignment for the benefit of creditors or
takes any [corporate/limited liability company] action in furtherance of any of the foregoing; or

() An involuntary petition is filed against Borrower (unless such petition is dismissed or discharged within 60 days)
under any bankruptcy statute now or hereafter in effect, or a custodian, receiver, trustee or assignee for the benefit of creditors (or other
similar official) is appointed to take possession, custody or control of any property of Borrower.

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder, the entire unpaid amount of the Repayment Amount shall
automatically be immediately due, payable and collectible by Lender pursuant to applicable law.

8. Parity with Other Notes. The Borrower’s repayment obligation to the Lender under this Note shall be on parity with the
Borrower’s obligation to repay all Notes issued in the same offering. In the event that the Company is obligated to repay the Notes and
does not have sufficient funds to repay all the Notes in full, payment shall be made to the holders of the Notes on a pro rata basis. The
preceding sentence shall not, however, relieve the Company of its obligations to the Lender hereunder.




9 . Waiver. Borrower waives presentment and demand for payment, notice of dishonor, protest and notice of protest of this
Note, and shall pay all costs of collection when incurred, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and other expenses.
The right to plead any and all statutes of limitations as a defense to any demands hereunder is hereby waived to the full extent permitted by
law.

10. Amendments. Any provision of this instrument (other than the Repayment Amount) may be amended, waived or modified
as follows: upon the written consent of the Borrower the holders of a majority in principal of the Loan Amounts raised in this offering.

11. Notice. Any notice required or permitted by this instrument will be deemed sufficient when delivered personally or by
overnight courier or sent by email to the relevant address listed on the signature page, or 48 hours after being deposited in the U.S. mail as
certified or registered mail with postage prepaid, addressed to the party to be notified at such party’s address listed on the signature page, as
subsequently modified by written notice.

12.  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York
applicable to contracts made and to be performed wholly within such state. THE COMPANY AND PURCHASERS WAIVE ANY RIGHT
TO AJURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UPON OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREIN, INCLUDING CLAIMS BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, BREACH OF DUTY AND
ALL OTHER COMMON LAW OR STATUTORY BASES. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state
and federal courts sitting in the County of New York, State of New York for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection
herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein

13. Successors and Assigns. Neither this instrument nor the rights contained herein may be assigned, by operation of law or
otherwise, by either party without the prior written consent of the other; provided, however, that the Company may assign this instrument
in whole, without the consent of the Investor, in connection with a reincorporation to change the Company’s domicile. Subject to the
foregoing, this instrument will be binding on the parties’ successors and assigns.

14. No Stockholder Rights. The Lender is not entitled, as a holder of this instrument, to vote or receive dividends or be deemed
the holder of capital stock of the Borrower for any purpose, nor will anything contained herein be construed to confer on the Lender, as
such, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Borrower or any right to vote for the election of directors or upon any matter submitted to
stockholders at any meeting thereof, or to give or withhold consent to any corporate action or to receive notice of meetings, or to receive
subscription rights or otherwise.

15. Tax Withholding. Lender hereby authorizes the Borrower to make any withholding required by law. Lender agrees to
provide to Borrower a Form W-9 or comparable form.




16. Not Effective Until Acceptable by Borrower . This Agreement is not effective until the Borrower has accepted the
Lender’s subscription.

[Signature page follows.]




BORROWER:
FULL SPECTRUM INC.
Stewart Kantor, CEO

LENDER:

By:
Name:
Title:
Address:

Email:




Exhibit 4.7
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT, dated as of , 2017 (this “Agreement”), by and between Full

Spectrum Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and each purchaser identified on the signature pages hereto (each, including its
successors and assigns, a “Purchaser” and collectively, the “Purchasers”).

RECITALS

A. Purchasers desire to purchase from the Company and the Company desires to sell to Purchasers certain of the Company’s
Senior Convertible Promissory Notes, in the aggregate face amount of $3,000,000, in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto (individually, a
“Note” and collectively, the “Notes”). The principal amount of the Notes each Purchaser has committed to purchase, and the amount of the
purchase price thereof to be paid to the Company by the Purchaser (a “Commitment”) is listed on the signature page such Purchaser
executes and delivers to the Company.

B. The Company’s sale of the Notes to the Purchaser will be made in reliance upon the provisions of Section 4(a)(2) under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) thereunder, and other applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and/or upon such other exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act as may be available with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

AGREEMENT
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement, the
covenants and agreements set forth hereafter, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby

acknowledged, the Purchasers and the Company hereby agree as follows:

1 .  Purchase of the Notes. On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Notes, the
Purchasers shall purchase from the Company and the Company shall sell to the Purchasers the Notes.

2.  Purchaser’s Representations, Warranties and Covenants. In order to induce the Company to sell and issue the Notes to the
Purchaser under one or more exemptions from registration under the Securities Act, each Purchaser, severally and not jointly, represents and
warrants to the Company, and covenants with the Company, that, as of the date hereof and as of each Closing Date (except as otherwise set
forth herein):

(a) (1) Such Purchaser has the requisite power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, and each of the
other agreements entered into by the parties hereto in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (collectively, the
“Transaction Documents”), and to purchase the Securities in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof.




(i1) The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents by the Purchaser and the consummation by it of
the transactions contemplated thereby have been duly and validly authorized by the Purchaser’s organizational documents (if any) and no
further consent or authorization is required by the Purchaser.

(ii1) The Transaction Documents have been duly and validly executed and delivered by the Purchaser.

(iv) The Transaction Documents, and each of them, constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the Purchaser
enforceable against the Purchaser in accordance with their respective terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by general
principles of equity or applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, liquidation or similar laws relating to, or affecting
generally, the enforcement of creditors’ rights and remedies.

(b) The execution, delivery and performance of the Transaction Documents by the Purchaser and the consummation by
the Purchaser of the transactions contemplated thereby will not conflict with or constitute a default under any agreement or instrument to
which the Purchaser is a party or by which the Purchaser is bound.

(c) The Purchaser understands that the Notes and any shares of the Company’s common stock par value $0.00001 per
share (the “Common Stock”) issuable upon conversion thereof (the “Conversion Shares”), any warrants issuable pursuant to and upon
conversion of the Notes (“Warrants”) and any shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants (the “Warrant Shares”;
together with Notes, the Conversion Shares, the Warrants and the Warrant Shares herein collectively referred to as the “Securities”) are
“restricted securities” and have not been registered under the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law and is acquiring the
Securities as principal for its own account and not with a view to or for distributing or reselling such Securities or any part thereof in
violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law, has no present intention of distributing any of such Securities in
violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law and has no direct or indirect arrangement or understandings with any
other persons to distribute or regarding the distribution of such Securities in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities
law (this representation and warranty not limiting the Purchaser’s right to sell the Securities in compliance with applicable federal and state
securities laws).

(e) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Securities have been offered to it in direct communication between itself and the
Company and not through any advertisement, article, notice or other communication regarding the Securities published in any newspaper,
magazine or similar media or broadcast over the television or radio or presented in any seminar or any other general solicitation or general
advertisement.

(f) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Company has given it access to all information relating to the Company’s
business that it has requested. The Purchaser has reviewed all materials relating to the Company’s business, finance and operations which it
has requested and the Purchaser has reviewed all of such materials as the Purchaser, in the Purchaser’s sole and absolute discretion shall
have deemed necessary or desirable. The Purchaser has had an opportunity to discuss the business, management and financial affairs of the
Company with the Company’s management.




(g) The Purchaser acknowledges that it has, by reason of its business and financial experience, such knowledge,
sophistication and experience in financial and business matters and in making investment decisions of this type that it is capable of (i)
evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the Securities and making an informed investment decision in connection therewith; (ii)
protecting its own interest; and (iii) bearing the economic risk of such investment for an indefinite period of time. The undersigned hereby
agrees to indemnify the Company thereof and to hold the Company and the officers, directors and employees thereof harmless against all
liability, costs or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising by reason of or in connection with any misrepresentation or any
breach of warranties of the undersigned contained in this Agreement, or arising as a result of the sale or distribution of the Securities , by
the undersigned in violation of the Securities Act, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or any other
applicable law, either federal or state. This subscription and the representations and warranties contained herein shall be binding upon the
heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns of the Purchaser.

(h) The Purchaser is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities
Act and as set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof, and will be an accredited investor on each date which it exercises
any of the Warrants.

(i) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Shares and Warrant Shares will be subject to lock-up provisions (the “Lock-up”)
contained herein. Upon and subject to the Company’s underwritten initial public offering the Purchaser agrees not to sell, transfer, pledge,
hypothecate or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Shares or Warrant Shares without the approval of the Company until six months
thereafter. Purchaser agrees to provide to the Company underwriters of any public offering such further agreements as such underwriter
may reasonably request in connection with this Lock-up agreement, provided that the terms of such agreements are generally consistent
with the provisions of this Section 2(i).

(j) The Purchaser is aware that the Securities may only be disposed of in compliance with state and federal securities laws.
In connection with any transfer of the Securities, the Company may require the transferor thereof to provide to the Company an opinion of
counsel, the form and substance of which opinion shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Company, to the effect that such transfer does not
require registration of such transferred securities under the Securities Act. Further, the Purchaser understands and acknowledges that any
certificates evidencing the Securities will bear a legend in substantially the following form:

THE SECURITIES EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR QUALIFIED FOR SALE UNDER ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS
(COLLECTIVELY, “SECURITIES LAWS”) AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED
UNLESS REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED FOR SALE UNDER ALL APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS OR UNLESS,
IN THE OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY, IN FORM AND SUBSTANCE
SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY, ANY SUCH OFFER, SALE OR OTHER TRANSFER IS EXEMPT FROM THE
REGISTRATION OR QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH SECURITIES LAWS.




(k) The Purchaser understands and acknowledges that the Company has neither filed a registration statement with the
SEC or any state authorities for the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents, and in the absence of
such a registration statement or exemption, the Purchaser may have to hold the Securities indefinitely and may be unable to liquidate any of
them in case of an emergency.

(1) The Purchaser understands that it is liable for its own tax liabilities and has obtained no tax advice from the Company
in connection with the purchase of the Securities.

(m) Purchaser hereby agrees and acknowledges that it has been informed of the following: (i) there are factors relating to
the subsequent transfer of any of the Securities that could make the resale of such Securities difficult; and (ii) there is no guarantee that the
Purchaser will realize any gain from the purchase of the Securities; and (iii) the purchase of the Securities involves a high degree of risk
and is subject to many uncertainties. The Purchaser acknowledges that it understands that these risks and uncertainties may adversely affect
the Company’s business, operating results and financial condition, and the trading price for the Common Stock if it is later quoted or traded
on any securities trading market or exchange and Purchaser could lose all or part of its investment.

3. Company’s Representations, Warranties and Covenants. The Company represents and warrants to the Purchasers that:

(a) The Company is a corporation duly organized and validly existing in good standing under the laws of the State of
Delaware, and has the requisite corporate power and authorization to own its properties and to carry on its business as now being
conducted.

(b) (i) The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, and
each of the other agreements entered into by the parties hereto in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Transaction
Documents, and to issue the Notes and Warrants in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof.

(i1) The execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents by the Company and the consummation by it of
the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including without limitation the reservation for issuance and the issuance of the Notes
and Warrants pursuant to this Agreement, have been duly and validly authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors and no further
consent or authorization is required by the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders.

(iii) The Transaction Documents have been duly and validly executed and delivered by the Company.




(iv) The Transaction Documents, and each of them, constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the Company
enforceable against the Company in accordance with their respective terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by general
principles of equity or applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, liquidation or similar laws relating to, or affecting
generally, the enforcement of creditors’ rights and remedies.

(c) The execution, delivery and performance of the Transaction Documents by the Company and the consummation by
the Company of the transactions contemplated thereby will not conflict with or constitute a default under any agreement or instrument to

which the Company is a party or under any organizational documents of the Company.

4.  Closing and Deliverables.

(a) The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on a date mutually
agreeable to the parties (“Closing Date”) at such location as may be agreed to by the parties provided that the Company shall have received
copies of this Agreement and the Note executed by each respective Purchaser. At the Closing:

(1) each Purchaser shall deliver to the Company immediately available funds, by check or by wire transfer (bank
wiring instructions as set forth in Exhibit C) in an amount equal to the amount of such Purchaser’s Commitment as set forth beside the name
of such Purchaser on such Purchaser’s signature page hereto.

(b) The Company shall deliver to the Purchaser a co-signed Note, in the Principal Amount equal to the Purchaser’s
Commitment forthwith after receipt of Purchaser’s Commitment. The Note will be dated as of the receipt of the date of funds.

5. Miscellaneous.

(a) Each party shall pay the fees and expenses of its own advisers, counsel, accountants and other experts, if any, and all
other expenses incurred by such party incident to the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of the Transactions
Documents.

(b) This Agreement may be executed in two or more identical counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the
same agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party; provided
that a facsimile signature or signature transmitted by e-mail shall be considered due execution and shall be binding upon the signatory
thereto with the same force and effect as if the signature were an original signature.

(c) The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation
of, this Agreement. Whenever required by the context of this Agreement, the singular shall include the plural and neutral shall include the
masculine and feminine.




(d) If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity or
unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement in that jurisdiction or the validity or
enforceability of any provision of this Agreement in any other jurisdiction.

(e) This Agreement and the Notes and Warrants represent the final agreement between the Purchasers and the Company
with respect to the terms and conditions set forth herein, and, the terms of this Agreement and the Notes and Warrants may not be
contradicted by evidence of prior, contemporaneous, or subsequent oral agreements of the parties. No provision of this Agreement and the
Notes and Warrants may be amended other than by an instrument in writing signed by the Purchaser and the Company, and no provision
hereof or thereof may be waived other than by an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom enforcement is sought.

() Any notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under the terms of this Agreement must be in
writing and will be deemed to have been delivered (i) upon receipt, when delivered personally; (ii) upon receipt, when sent by facsimile
(provided confirmation of transmission is mechanically or electronically generated and kept on file by the sending party); or (iii) one (1)
day after deposit with a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, in each case properly addressed to the party to receive the same.
The addresses and facsimile numbers for such communications shall be:

If to the Company:
Full Spectrum Inc.
687 N. Pastoria Ave

Sunnyvale, CA 94085
Attention: Stewart Kantor, Chief Executive Officer

Email: skantor@fullspectrumnet.com

If to a Purchaser:

to the address set forth on the Purchaser’s signature page hereto.

Each party shall provide five (5) days prior written notice to the other party of any change in address or facsimile number.
(g) This Agreement may not be assigned by any Purchaser.

(h) This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision
hereof be enforced by, any other person.

(i) The representations and warranties of the Purchasers and the Company contained herein shall survive the Closing and
the termination of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents.




() The Purchasers and the Company shall consult with each other in issuing any press releases or otherwise making
public statements with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby and no party shall issue any such press release or otherwise make
any such public statement without the prior consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, except
that no prior consent shall be required if such disclosure is required by law or the rules and regulations of the SEC.

(k) Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed, all such further acts and things, and shall execute
and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry
out the intent and accomplish the purposes of this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

(1) The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against any party, as the parties mutually agree that each has had a full and fair
opportunity to review this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and seek the advice of counsel on it and them.

(m) The Purchaser and the Company each shall have all rights and remedies set forth in this Agreement and all rights and
remedies which such holders have been granted at any time under any other agreement or contract and all of the rights which the Purchaser
has by law. Any person having any rights under any provision of this Agreement shall be entitled to enforce such rights specifically
(without posting a bond or other security), to recover damages by reason of any default or breach of any provision of this Agreement,
including the recovery of reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, and to exercise all other rights granted by law.

(n) This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable
to contracts made and to be performed wholly within such state. THE COMPANY AND PURCHASERS WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO A
JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UPON OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREIN, INCLUDING CLAIMS BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, BREACH OF DUTY AND
ALL OTHER COMMON LAW OR STATUTORY BASES. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state
and federal courts sitting in the County of New York, State of New York for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection
herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the
Transaction Documents).

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Purchaser and the Company have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.
THE COMPANY

FULL SPECTRUM INC.

By

Name: Stewart Kantor
Title: Chief Executive Officer

THE PURCHASER
$
Amount of Commitment
(minimum $50,000)
Signature:
Print Name: Date
Email
Address:

Tax ID / Social Security Number




EXHIBIT A

Form of Note




EXHIBIT B
ACCREDITED INVESTOR PAGE

The undersigned Purchaser is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act and
amended by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act by virtue of being (initial all applicable responses):

A small business investment company licensed by the U.S. Small Business Administration under the Small Business Investment
Company Act of 1958,

A business development company as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940,

A national or state-chartered commercial bank, whether acting in an individual or fiduciary capacity,
An insurance company as defined in Section 2(13) of the Securities Act,

An investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940,

An employee benefit plan within the meaning of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, where the
investment decision is made by a plan fiduciary, as defined in Section 3(21) of such Act, which is either a bank, insurance company,
or registered investment advisor, or an employee benefit plan which has total assets in excess of $5,000,000,

A private business development company as defined in Section 202(a)(22) of the Investment Advisors Act of 1940,

An organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, a corporation or a partnership with total assets in excess
of $5,000,000,

A natural person whose individual net worth, or joint net worth with that person’s spouse, at the time of purchase exceeds
$1,000,000. For purposes of this Exhibit A-1, “net worth” means the excess of total assets at fair market value over total liabilities.
For purposes of calculating net worth under this section, (i) the primary residence shall not be included as an asset, (ii) to the extent
that the indebtedness that is secured by the primary residence is in excess of the fair market value of the primary residence, the excess
amount shall be included as a liability, and (iii) if the amount of outstanding indebtedness that is secured by the primary residence
exceeds the amount outstanding 60 days prior to the execution of this questionnaire, other than as a result of the acquisition of the
primary residence, the amount of such excess shall be included as a liability.

Any trust, with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Shares offered, whose
purchase is directed by a sophisticated person as described in Section 506(b)(2)(ii) of Regulation D,

A natural person who had an individual income in excess of $200,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years, and has a
reasonable expectation of reaching the same income level in the current calendar year. For purposes of this Exhibit A-1, “income”
means annual adjusted gross income, as reported for federal income tax purposes, plus (i) the amount of any tax-exempt interest
income received; (ii) the amount of losses claimed as a limited partner in a limited partnership; (iii) any deduction claimed for
depletion; (iv) amounts contributed to an IRA or Keogh retirement plan; (v) alimony paid; and (vi) any amount by which income from
long-term capital gains has been reduced in arriving at adjusted gross income pursuant to the provisions of Section 1202 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

A corporation, partnership, trust or other legal entity (as opposed to a natural person) and all of such entity’s equity owners fall into
one or more of the categories enumerated above. (Note: additional documentation may be requested).

Signature of Purchaser

Title: Date ,2017
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Exhibit C

Wire Instructions
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS UNDER SECTION 302
I, Eric Brock, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Ondas Holdings Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 13, 2018

/s/ Eric Brock
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS UNDER SECTION 302
I, Stewart Kantor, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Ondas Holdings Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 13, 2018

/s/ Stewart Kantor
President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATIONS UNDER SECTION 906
Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United
States Code), each of the undersigned officers of Ondas Holdings Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), does hereby certify, to such
officer’s knowledge, that:
The Quarterly Report for the quarter ended September 30, 2018 (the “Form 10-Q”) of the Company fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly

presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: November 13, 2018 /s/ Eric Brock

Eric Brock
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: November 13, 2018 /s/ Stewart Kantor

Stewart Kantor
President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




